
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 

K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the  Governance Committee will be held in the Barum Room - Brynsworthy 
on TUESDAY, 10TH JANUARY, 2023 at 6.30 pm. 
 
(NOTE:  A location plan for the Brynsworthy Environment Centre is attached to the 
agenda front pages.  There are limited car parking spaces in the Visitors parking 
area.  If no spaces are available, please find an alternative space.  Please ensure 
that you enter your name and car registration details in the book in front of the 
entrance door) 
 
 
Members of the Governance Committee Councillor Roome (Chair) 
 
Councillors Bushell, Campbell, Henderson, Phillips, Topps, Turton and Walker 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   

2.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15th November 
2022  (Pages 7 - 14) 

3.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency.   

4.   Declarations of Interests.   

 (Please complete the form provided at the meeting or telephone Corporate and 
Community Services to prepare a form for your signature before the meeting. 
Interests must be re-declared when the item is called, and Councillors must leave 
the room if necessary.) 

 

5.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART A 

6.   Update on Planning Service   

 Head of Planning, Housing and Health to report. 
 

7.   Internal Audit Progress Report  (Pages 15 - 32) 

 Report by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) (attached) 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

 

8.   External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update  (Pages 33 - 44) 

 Report by Grant Thornton (attached) 
 

9.   Polling Places Designations  (Pages 45 - 56) 

 Report by the Head of Governance (attached). 
 

10.   Update on Governance Arrangements following Review of the Committee 
System  (Pages 57 - 64) 

 Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive to report (appendix attached). 
 

11.   Audit Recommendation Tracker  (Pages 65 - 92) 

 Report by the Chief Executive (attached) 
 

12.   Work Programme 2022-23  (Pages 93 - 96) 

 To consider the Work Programme 2022-23 (attached). 
 

13.   Exclusion of Public and Press and Restriction of Documents   

 RECOMMENDED: 
 
(a) That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item as it involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by Paragraph 3 of Part 
1 of the Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended from time to time), namely 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
(b) That all documents and reports relating to the item be confirmed as “Not for 

Publication”. 
 

PART B (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

14.   Corporate Risk Register  (Pages 97 - 148) 

 Report by the Head of Governance (attached) 
 

 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

20.12.22 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 



 
 

 
4 

 

 
 
North Devon Council offices at Brynsworthy, the full address is:  
Brynsworthy Environment Centre (BEC), Roundswell,  
Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 3NP. 
 
Sat Nav postcode is EX31 3NS. 
 
At the Roundswell roundabout take the exit onto the B3232, after about ½ mile take the 
first right, BEC is about ½ a mile on the right. 
 
Drive into the site, visitors parking is in front of the main building on the left hand side.  
 
On arrival at the main entrance, please dial 8253 for Corporate and Community Services. 
 

 
 



 

Governance Committee - 15 November 2022 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Governance Committee held at Barum Room - Brynsworthy 
on Tuesday, 15th November, 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Roome (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Bushell, Henderson, Phillips, Turton and Walker 

 
 Officers: 

 
 Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive, 

Head of Governance and Senior Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
 
Also Present: 
 
Paul Middlemass (Devon Audit Partnership) and Peter Barber (Grant 
Thornton) (attended virtually). 
 

29.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Topps. 
 

30.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 26TH SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26th September 2022 
(circulated previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair. 

 
 

31.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

There were no items brought forward by the Chair. 
 

32.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

There were no declarations of interest declared. 

33.   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 

The Committee considered a report by Devon Audit Partnership regarding the 
Internal Audit progress report for 2022-23 (circulated previously). 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Governance Committee - 15 November 2022 

 
 

 
2 

 

The Committee was advised of the following in relation to the Internal Audit Progress 
Report 2022-23: 
 

 The Audit Manager from Devon Audit Partnership stated that the Authority 
was on track for an overall opinion of ‘Reasonable Assurance’. 

 He was pleased that the levels of quantity of QA checks being carried out had 
increased back to pre-covid levels. 

 There were 5 audits in the 2022-23 plan (as per appendix 1): 
 

o The Housing Benefits and Council Tax audits were of 
Substantial Assurance 

o Waste and Recycling was of Reasonable Assurance. This was 
due to the significant pressure on the service and the increasing 
requirements to meet national recycling rates and targets. 

o Debtors was of Limited Assurance (due to the levels of debt 
carried forwards) 

o Equality and Diversity was of Limited Assurance (as the 
requirement to publish an Annual Report had not yet been met). 
It was noted that good work had been undertaken to provide 
support and training to staff, and to meet the accessibility 
requirements. 

 

 Counter fraud work: noted that fraud now related to 40% of all crime. With the 
anticipated increase of a further 25% in future. 

 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Chief Executive confirmed that the 
Annual Equality Report had now been progressed, and further works were ongoing 
in relation to assessing public review of the Authority. 
 
Councillor Turton arrived at 18:43 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the Director of Resources and Deputy 
Chief Executive confirmed that the Customer Services team regularly ran customer 
surveys on many aspects of the council services.  
 
In response to questions from the Committee regarding ‘Exit interviews’, the Chief 
Executive confirmed: 
 

o Exit interviews were offered to leavers.  
o Those staff were encouraged to attend although this was difficult to enforce. 
o The Council would not withhold final pay on the condition that an exit interview 

was attended. 
o A recent case where a leaver made the decision to withdraw their resignation 

was not due to any issues with the employee’s employment.  Personal 
circumstances had resulted in a resignation, which, once reconsidered, the 
Council was able to assist by providing a flexible approach and alternative 
work schedule to enable them to stay. The employee was happy with the 
resulting outcome.   

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 
Governance Committee - 15 November 2022 

 
 

 
3 

 

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Progress report be noted. 

34.   EXTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR 
UPDATE 
 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton regarding the External Audit 
Progress report and Sector Update (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor confirmed: 
 

 Good progress had been made since the last meeting. Only two areas of the 
audit were outstanding: The Letter of Assurance from the Pension Fund (due 
soon) and final pieces of work on the Property, Plant and Equipment 
valuations. 

 An additional reporting item since the Audit Findings Report was presented to 
Governance Committee on 26 September 2022 was as follows:  As part of the 
PPE testing, the External Auditors identified that the valuers had incorrectly 
calculated the valuation for Commercial Road Car Park. The incorrect 
management fee was used as part of the calculation and as a result caused 
the value to be overstated by £65k.They carried out additional procedures 
across all of the carpark valuations to ensure this was an isolated error. This 
was being brought to committee members’ attention as it was above the 
auditors’ trivial level of £50k but well below materiality at £1m. As a result, 
management were not minded to adjust for this amount and the External 
Auditors concurred with this.  

 It was hoped that the final audit opinion would be issued prior to 30th 
November 2022. NDC would be one of a small number of Authorities able to 
meet the 2021/22 deadline of 30th November. 

 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that this had been 
the first that he had been made aware of the carpark valuation error, but that it would 
be covered within the financial statements for the next financial year. He was 
pleased with the progress made and that NDC would be in the position to meet the 
deadline. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the External Auditor confirmed that the 
frequent changes to the Prime Minister and Westminster had not resulted in many 
issues for the auditors as the Audit Standards had been set by the National Audit 
Office (NAO) for a five year period so were not affected. He felt that more pressure 
would probably be felt by the Council’s own officers, especially the Section 151 
officer due to uncertainty around funding as austerity measures set in. The recent 
pay award would also provide budgetary pressure. 
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that: 

 a paper in relation to the refreshed budget projections would be presented to 
Full Council soon (23rd November 2022) 

 There were early indications of a public sector grant funding freeze although it 
was uncertain how this would affect individual government departments. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 
Governance Committee - 15 November 2022 

 
 

 
4 

 

 A £5 increase to Council Tax for 2023/24 was currently built into the 
projections however this would be subject to the detailed budget setting 
process. The £5 was roughly equivalent to around a 2.5% increase. 

 
The Chief Executive confirmed that the budget gap would not be mitigated solely by 
the increase in Council tax. 
 
 

RESOLVED that the External Audit Progress Report and Sector 
Update be noted. 
 

35.   AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 
 

The Committee considered the Audit Recommendation Tracker report by the Chief 
Executive in respect of actions taken to address internal and external audit 
recommendations (circulated previously).  
 
The Chair confirmed that an updated report had been published as a supplementary 
report. 
 
The Committee noted the following updates: 
 

 The main difference between the two versions of the report was that the last 
four items on table C of the original report had since been completed, and 
were now included in table B of the amended report. 

 14 recommendations had been included in table B of the updated report  
(recommendations completed since the last meeting of the Governance 
Committee)  

 Table C detailed four recommendations for which time extensions were being 
requested.   

 The Emergency Planning training had not taken place due to the activation of 
Operation London Bridge following the passing of Her Majesty Queen 
Elizabeth II. The training had been rescheduled  

 Assurance statement for Safeguarding duties – In Devon there was an 
agreement for joint assurance – this however had been held up by Devon 
County Council (DCC) 

 Table D detailed one outstanding recommendation. The previous Planning 
Manager had started to engage with consultees in order to obtain responses. 
Since she had now left the Authority, the new Planning Manager had started 
to recommence the works.  

 The recommendations in Table E (the Annual Governance Statement) 
showed those outstanding, completed, or those for which extensions had 
been requested. 

 
In response to a question from the Committee, the Chief Executive confirmed that 
the Data Protection recommendation on the original report had now been closed, but 
not noted on the updated report as ‘completed’ as it was a low level risk. 
 

RESOLVED: 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 
Governance Committee - 15 November 2022 

 
 

 
5 

 

 
(a) that the time extensions requested in the Audit 

Recommendation Tracker be approved; and 
 

(b) that the Audit Recommendation Tracker be noted 

36.   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COMMITTEE'S EFFECTIVENESS 
 

The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that 
 

 All members had completed the survey.   

 Many of the 80 questions had required yes/no answers.  

 The answers to questions for which there had been some ‘no’ or ‘don’t know’ 
answers were clarified as follows: 

o Q3 NDC do not have an Overview and Scrutiny Committee any more. 
There was a Policy Development Committee for which agenda items can be 
forwarded if necessary.  There have been occasions where a meeting has 
been cancelled when not quorate, or delayed when Councillors were late. The 
Corporate and Community Services officer had been telephoning Members to 
remind them to attend the meetings or give apologies in advance.  

o Q7 All Members of the Committee had been provided with training when 
appointed to the Committee, with a refresher taking place two years following. 
Other training had been made available, including LGA Finance training and 
any further courses required could be considered. Although no specific 
requirements for members to have prior financial/suitable knowledge had 
been implemented by NDC it was expected that the Group Leaders would 
have sought to appoint suitable Members to each Committee. 

o Q13 Every agenda has an item where Members were asked to declare any 
interests. 

o Q17  As per Q3 regarding quorum issues. 
o Q27 There was some integration assessing risk when reports were 

considered. Some cover risk management. 
o Q29 This was covered in June 2021 with the updated Anti-Fraud and 

Corruption Policy being approved. 
o Q33 The Internal Audit Plan (and the Corporate Risk Register) was 

considered by the Senior Management Team (SMT) to help to focus the 
direction of audits. 

o Q39 This was covered by the Statement of Accounts (at the September 
meeting).  Large write-offs were considered by Strategy and Resources, then 
Full Council, rather than by the Governance Committee. Any write-offs over 
£1500 were considered in consultation with the Leader and not the remit of 
this committee. 

o Q41 & Q43 Yes the Committee receives both of those reports. (External 
Audit report and Letter of Representation). 

o Q45  Topical legal and regulatory issues were presented to the Committee 
within the External Auditors Report. 

 During a discussion regarding the layout and content of the reports received from the 
Auditors, the Chair confirmed he found them well-presented and easy to understand 

 
The Internal Auditor confirmed that they were currently undertaking a review of the 
reports provided to each of the Devon Authorities and ascertain any different 
requirements across the region. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 
Governance Committee - 15 November 2022 

 
 

 
6 

 

 The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive advised that: 
 

o Q76 A peer review had been undertaken, and the results circulated 
previously.  That had covered areas of work that could come to the 
Committee within the work programme. 

 
In response to a question from the Committee, the Chief Executive confirmed that 
the findings of the Organisational Development team had been circulated to officers 
and a report would be presented to this Committee in due course. This work 
considered the culture of the organisation: both staff and members. 
 
The Chief Executive reiterated that the role of the Governance Committee was to 
look at the controls and procedures set in place and ensure issues were picked up 
through performance rather than specific cases or incidents.  
 
The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive advised that: 
 

o Q77 Assurance was sought by the auditors as part of their Value for Money 
assessment. 

o Q80 The value of assets and loans was included within the Statement of 
Accounts. 

o Q84 The appointment of an ‘Independent person’ appointed to Committees 
was being considered, along with the possibility of sharing such an individual 
with other Devon authorities. 

 
RESOLVED;  
 

a) That the Internal Auditors’ report on the Review of the reports 
provided/required by each of the Devon Authorities be circulated by the 
Corporate and Community Services Officer to the Committee Members as 
soon as it became available; 

 
b) An ‘Exit’ questionnaire be developed and issued to Members at the end of 

their term; 
 

c) That Performance Framework be considered at a future Governance 
Committee; and 

 
d) The update on the Annual Review of the Committee’s Effectiveness be noted. 

37.   WORK PROGRAMME 2022-23 
 

The Committee considered the work programme for 2022-23 (circulated previously). 
 
The Chair (Councillor Roome) and Councillor Henderson declared interests as 
Devon County (DCC) Councillors. 
 
The Chair advised the Committee of the financial pressures on the County Council; 
noting there was a £75m shortfall in their budget and that the Leader of DCC had 
written an open letter to the Government to request additional funding. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 
Governance Committee - 15 November 2022 

 
 

 
7 

 

The Chief Executive advised that the Corporate Risk Register would be presented to 
the Committee in January 2023. 
 
 RESOLVED:  
 

a) that a survey be issued to Members regarding a “Review of the 
Committee System” 

 
b) that the Head of Planning, Housing and Health be invited to attend 

the Committee in January 2023 
 

c) that the work programme for 2022-23 be noted. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 7.50 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Tony Rose 
Head of Audit Partnership 

 
 
Internal Audit  
 
Progress Report 2022-23 
 
North Devon Council 
Governance Committee 
 
January 2023 

 
 
 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7



 

1 

 

Introduction 

The Governance Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in North Devon District Council’s 
Constitution, is required to consider the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report, to review and approve the 
Internal Audit programme, and to monitor the progress and performance of Internal Audit. 
 
The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015 introduced the requirement that all 
Authorities carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of their internal audit system and incorporate the 
results of that review into their Annual Governance Statement (AGS), published with the annual Statement of 
Accounts. 
  
The Internal Audit plan for 2022-23 was presented and approved by the Governance Committee in March 
2022. The following report and appendices set out the background to audit service provision and provides a 
position statement on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control environment. 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual report 
providing an opinion that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement. This report 
contributes to that annual opinion. 
 
Expectations of the Governance Committee from this progress report 

Governance Committee members are requested to consider: 

 the assurance statement within this report. 

 the basis of our opinion and the completion of audit work against the plan. 

 the revised audit plan provided. 

 audit coverage and findings provided. 

 the overall performance and customer satisfaction on audit delivery. 

 
In review of the above the Governance Committee are required to consider the assurance provided 
alongside that of the Executive, Corporate Risk Management and external assurance including that of the 
External Auditor as part of the Governance Framework and satisfy themselves from this assurance that the 
internal control framework continues to be maintained. 

 

Tony Rose 
Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

Contents Page 

Introduction 1 

Opinion Statement 2 

Executive Summary Audit Results  2 

Value Added 3 

Audit Coverage & Progress Against 
Plan  

3 
 

  

  

 Appendices  

1 – Summary of Audit Results 
2 – Agenda items of District Audit 
Committees 

5 
10 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 7



  

2 

 

Opinion Statement 
This opinion statement will support Members in their consideration for signing the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, controls are operating 
satisfactorily within audit reviews. An opinion on the adequacy of controls is 
provided to management as part of each audit report.   

All final audit reports include an action plan which identifies responsible 
officers, and target dates, to address control issues identified. 
Implementation of action plans is the responsibility of management but may 
be reviewed during subsequent audits or as part of a follow-up process. 

Directors and Senior Management are provided with details of Internal 
Audit’s opinion for each audit review to assist them with compilation of their 
individual annual governance assurance statements at year end.  
 

 

Executive Summary of Audit Results 

In support of our current overall assessment of Reasonable 
Assurance, this chart represents the opinions provided to date:  

 

Core Financial Audits  

We provide a Substantial for our audit on Creditors and note that 
about 90% of invoices are paid within timescales. We are currently 
completing an audit on the Main Accounting System.   

Risk Based Audits 

We provide summaries on five Reasonable Assurance audits 
delivered. We report good progress to set up the Programme 
Management Office. We also note the progress to instil a 
performance management regime over the Tarka Leisure Centre to 
ensure the contractor is delivering to agreed targets. In relation to 
Car Park operations, we provide a Reasonable Assurance which is 
an improvement in the Limited Assurance opinion provided in our 
year in     

 

Substantial, 3

Reasonable, 7

Limited, 2

Grant certified, 3

Substantial 
Assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exist 
across the organisation, with internal controls operating effectively and 
being consistently applied to support the achievement of strategic and 
operational objectives. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

There are generally sound systems of governance, risk management 
and control in place across the organisation. Some issues, non-
compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at 
risk the achievement of some of the strategic and operational 
objectives. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified across 
the organisation. Improvement is required to the system of governance, 
risk management and control to effectively manage risks and ensure 
that strategic and operational objectives can be achieved. 

No 
Assurance 

Immediate action is required to address fundamental control gaps, 
weaknesses or issues of non-compliance identified across the 
organisation. The system of governance, risk management and control 
is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
strategic and operational objectives. 

Overall, based on work performed during 2022/23 and our experience 
from the current year progress and previous years’ audit, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s Opinion is of “Reasonable Assurance” on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 

framework 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7



  

3 

 

 

Appendix 1 to this report provides more detail on the audits delivered 
since the last Committee meeting with the overall assurance opinion 
and recommendations. Where a “substantial assurance” or 
“reasonable assurance” of audit opinion has been provided we can 
confirm that, overall, sound controls are in place to mitigate exposure 
to risks identified; where an opinion of “limited assurance” has been 
provided then issues were identified during the audit process that 
required attention. We have provided a summary of key issues 
reported that are being addressed by management. We are content 
that management are appropriately addressing these issues. 

Counter Fraud Work 

We continue to support the good work being undertaken by 
management to produce Service specific fraud risk registers to 
enable consideration of controls to mitigate fraud and error risks. We 
also intend to undertake a Fraud Risk Assessment in the next few 
months which we will present to Governance Committee.  

There have been no reported fraud issues in the year to date. 
Management is aware that they can refer any suspected issues to 
our counter fraud team.  

We have agreed with Devon County Council that they will fund an 
exercise to review the Single Person Discounts claimed by 
individuals. We are progressing this with DCC procurement.    

Risk Management 

We are now undertaking our review of the council’s risk management 
arrangements and will report to the next Governance Committee 
meeting. We will also support a risk management workshop to new 
members in May 2023, and to council officers when convenient to 
improve understanding in this area.  

 

 

 

Value Added 

It is important that the internal audit service seeks to "add value" 
whenever it can. We consider internal audit activity has added value 
to the organisation and its stakeholders by: 

 Providing objective and relevant assurance. 

 Contributing to the effectiveness and efficiency of the 
governance, risk management and internal control processes. 

 Adjusting the audit plan when needed to provide real time 
assurance, such as on the cost-of-living crisis.  

 Comparing and contrasting controls across the different Devon 
Councils that we support.  

Audit Coverage and Performance Against Plan  

We have made reasonable progress to deliver the 2022-23 audit 
plan, with only 27% of the plan yet to be started at early December 
Currently, we expect to meet our performance target of 90% of audits 
completed by the year end.  

We are starting to plan our work for 2023/24, and a draft plan will be 
submitted to this committee in March 2023.   

Key performance indicators  

We report delivery against our performance indicators in our annual 
report.  

Progress to implement our audit recommendations are monitored 
and managed by the Authority. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 7



  

4 

 

 

Customer Satisfaction 

We received the following satisfaction returns this year: 

Audit  Marking 

Programme 
Management Office 

Very Satisfied 

Debtors Very Satisfied 

Safeguarding Very Satisfied 

Health and Safety Satisfied 

Security Very Satisfied 

Climate Change Satisfied 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Review of District Council Audit Committees – 
subjects covered 

Appendix 2 is a paper based on a review of agenda items included in 
Audit Committees of Devon District Councils. This Audit Committee 
may wish to consider the range of subjects covered by other 
committees to inform its programme of work.   

 

 

 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 5 

Appendix 1 – Summary of audit reports and findings for 2022-23 
  

Audit and 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Summary, risk exposure and management actions Summary of 
Actions    

High / Med / Low 

Creditors  

Substantial 
Assurance 

The control framework related to creditors continues to be effective in its operation. Creditors are paid via 
BACS through a weekly payment run with any new suppliers being paid having had their standing data details 
subject to check and verification before payment. A reconciliation exercise is undertaken using a suite of 
reports prior to instruction being provided to the Council’s bankers to make the necessary payments; 
separation of duties is evident in this process.  

Invoices sampled for audit testing were paid on a timely basis. Our previous internal audit review highlighted 
the payments made (74%) which were supported by a purchase order which had shown a significant 
improvement upon the percentage quoted by Mazars (43%) in their last Creditors audit report. It is pleasing to 
note that the percentage of payments made supported by a purchase order continues to increase in 
accordance with the requirements laid down within the Financial Procedure Rules. A recent report shows it now 
at about 90% of purchase orders. The council has agreed to work to further increase this figure towards the 
pre-covid figure of 97% of invoices paid on time.   

0 0 0 

Car Park 
Operations 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

 

Effective systems and processes are in place to manage car parking income. Car parking fees can be paid via 
a variety of payment methods: cash, card or through the RingGo phone app. An experienced team of staff 
manage the daily operation of off street car parking. They ensure Pay & Display machines are working with 
collection and removal of cash boxes; and collected boxes are securely delivered to the counting office for 
emptying and counting. Monthly budget monitoring is undertaken, and reports provided show income from each 
car park. Car Park income is budgeted to be £2,914,850 in 2022/23. Income is yet to attain levels achieved pre 
pandemic (i.e., income of £2,906,563 in 2017/18.).  As at the end of November 2022 monies collected totalled 
£2,051,200, albeit with some months of the year to come.  

The previous audit review highlighted concerns regarding under-utilisation of four car parks due to either no 
reserved bay permit or very few reserved bay permits having been purchased. Review of these permits shows 
this has improved.: 

We analysed Parking Charge Notices (PCNs) issued. In 943 (7.2%) instances, the PCN that had been issued 
was subsequently cancelled because of the driver either producing and having a valid Pay & Display ticket, 
parking permit, or phone session covering their stay within the car park. The number of PCN subject to 
cancellation for these three reasons seems excessive. Additionally, 3% of PCNs issued were cancelled due to 
‘Civil Enforcement Officer Error’. Investigation should take place to ascertain the reasons for these cancellation 

0 3 2 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 6 

  

levels and also collection rate; be it due to staff error, equipment not working, drivers obtaining valid tickets 
from others, or other reasons and what the authority can do to mitigate these scenarios. Three PCN related 
performance indicators were on Pentana Risk during our previous audit review relating to the PCNs issued, 
cancelled, and appealed; these are no longer monitored or recorded on the system. We consider this important 
performance information for management to consider given the analysis above.  

No Parking Services Business Plan or Strategy exists detailing aims and objectives for the team to work 
towards with regard the Corporate Plan and climate change requirements. This is important given the impact of 
traffic and parking on the local environment, particularly during the holiday periods. Due to the size of the 
Parking Services team and the various facets of their work, a strategy would be beneficial. Work has been 
undertaken comparing parking charges against those of other authorities as background for 2023/24 budget 
report proposals detailed above. Comparisons on fees and charges along with levels of performance against 
peers could feed into a business plan or strategy.    

Recruitment 
and 
Retention 

 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

The council has an effective process to manage the recruitment and induction of staff, partially fulfilled by the 
recent introduction of the iTrent HR system. The HR team is supportive of recruiting managers and have 
enabled some service areas to hold targeted public recruitment days in challenging market conditions 
experienced nationwide after the pandemic. However, managers have not received recent training on 
recruitment, including on iTrent, which would help support better interviews and subsequent selection of 
individuals for the advertised post. In addition, as noted in a related audit officers do not undertake periodic 
Equality and Diversity refresher training to remind them of the requirements in this area. This should include 
Unconscious Bias training.  

The Recruitment and Selection Policy is well-written, suitably detailed, and easy for managers to follow. 
However, it was written in 2016 and without a future review date it risks not being up to date with current 
legislation. There is also a historic Retention Policy from 2007 which needs to be reviewed and updated as 
hybrid working etc weren’t a consideration then. 

The HR web-recruitment system iTrent is being used for the selection process only. This is more efficient than 
previous systems enabling applications to be processed more easily without changing file formats, however 
limited numbers of staff are trained to use it. Most submit their applications on-line, but a manual paper process 
is still offered to those applicants without internet access. 

Due to the limited use of iTrent, reporting data is insufficient to be useful in assessing the end-to-end 
recruitment process to enable identification of where delays are occurring. Our analysis indicates an end-to-end 
recruitment time (from advertising date to post filling) of 80 days. While this was the same as a neighbouring 
council, another local council only took 58 days. More detailed analysis of the process would be useful to 
identify where bottlenecks occur within the process i.e., delays in sifting, delays in interviewing etc. 

There is no current retention strategy, as the Recruitment and Retention Strategy was for 2007 – 2010. We 
noted in a previous audit that priority should be given to ensure exit interviews are undertaken to understand 

0 6 1 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 7 

  

the reason for someone leaving the council. As few exit interviews are undertaken there is limited analysis of 
the reasons why staff leave the council to inform a subsequent retention strategy. The council has begun to 
undertake staff surveys, and these will help build a picture of the morale and attitudes of staff to the council. 
Following the end of our fieldwork, it is also undertaking exit interviews as the default approach.  

Customer 
Service 
Centre 

 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

The Customer Service Centre (CSC) provides a good level of service to the public. The CSC prioritises taking 
as many of the calls as possible, managing about 75-85% with the remainder being abandoned by the caller. 
This information is monitored through the day via wall mounted screens so that everyone can work together to 
provide the best service to callers. The CSC call volumes are normally between 250 and 450 per day with peak 
volume times being resourced accordingly. The CSC has had staff vacancies since September 2021 which 
have had an adverse effect on the capacity to answer calls, although two new people are due to join shortly. 
Complaints received regarding the service provided by the centre are very low. 

Where a customer’s call cannot be resolved by the CSC, a “Firmstep” request is sent through to individual 
service areas for a response/action.  The CSC Manager holds fortnightly meetings with core service areas to 
discuss these requests and any learning/training needs are highlighted and fed back to the CSC team. Through 
this feedback, the capability and processes of the CSC are continuing to improve.  Additional service capability 
such as Council Tax direct debit (DD) set-up and single payments has led to an increase in take-up DD rates to 
77% which we understand is the highest it has ever been.  

However, beyond the first point of contact at the CSC, the current telephony system doesn’t capture a 
breakdown of calls by service area. It also does not support confirmation that customer calls/requests are 
actioned in a timely manner by the service area. Individual Service areas may be able to provide details on 
resolution of calls / requests, but a council wide report on this is not available. This makes it difficult for the 
council to assess whether all service areas deal effectively with public requests, complaints, and questions. We 
are told that a new telephony system is being discussed and we identify this functionality as being important to 
NDCs understanding of its customers’ journey. It is planned to be in place by October 2023. 

We made a Medium recommendation to progress the system improvements to support service improvements, 
and a Low recommendation for the Service to consider a range of performance measures (not just customer 
satisfaction forms).  

0 1 1 

Programme 
Management 
Office 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

The Programme Management Office (PMO) has formed up with the three members of the team in place and 
actively providing good support to the five programmes, and projects. Systematic arrangements have been 
created to monthly review programmes and their projects and produce reports to Senior Management Team to 
consider.  

SRO leads are in place for each programme, and a project lead for most of the projects. We understand that 
SMT discusses one of these programmes every Monday, meaning that each one will be discussed once every 
five weeks. This will help provide understanding and knowledge of the programmes and how other council 
areas might be impacted.  

0 2 3 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 8 

  

Programme and project leads commented to us on the good service being provided by the PMO. This included 
instilling a regime to ensure each project was discussed every month, to discuss risks and issues, and ensure 
required actions are identified and a way forward agreed. Inclusion of finance officers also meant a good focus 
on the programme budget and cost pressures. This meeting also informed the subsequent Activity report 
discussed by SMT. There was agreement that the PMO provided effective challenge and provided good advice 
and guidance.  

A key part of the role of the PMO will be to help provide clarity on the status of programmes and projects for 
members and senior managers and SMT. The head of the PMO has started drafting an update report on the 
programme position for the Strategy and Resources Committee. The PMO should continue to develop clear 
assessments on the state of each programme and project. This should include a high level but clear and 
realistic summary on progress to take forward the programme and projects, the level of risk related to them, the 
likelihood in meeting the target dates within budget and current issues.  

Review of the Activity reports to SMT highlight that they could provide more clarity on project delivery, risk and 
issues. These should help identify a programme or projects that have higher risk, or that was expected to go 
over budget or be delivered late. A programme report template with a "project on a page" may be beneficial. As 
per the member report, this might include RAG assessments of the project status, the main risks identified, key 
delivery milestones, interdependencies, and the importance of the project to the council.  

Effective management of programme and project risks by the PMO will be important to increase likelihood of 
objectives. The PMO will need to play a key role in developing management understanding of the relative risks 
related to each programme and project. A useful starting point is the recent creation by the PMO of a Risk, 
Issues, Change Control and Lessons Learnt log. We note it would be beneficial to have some sort of Heat Map 
which would provide a view of which programmes had greater risk.  

We understand that risks are discussed at part of the monthly catch-up meetings with programmes. However, 
some projects did not have risk registers. Risk registers are important project management tools to ensure 
relevant risks are identified, managed, and mitigated.  

Tarka 
Leisure 
Centre 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

Our previous audit report of the Tarka Leisure Centre (issued in December 2020) reviewed progress on the 
build phase and resulted in a Reasonable Assurance level overall. Several recommendations were made and 
our current review notes that, whilst not all were fully implemented, action does appear to have been taken in 
most cases. 

The build phase is now largely complete, with only the defects period currently remaining until June 2023. 
Based on the co-ordinated snagging/defects list, good progress seems to be being made on the issues. 
However, there are still over 100 that need to be addressed, some potentially more significant than others. 

The service/operational elements of the contract have been underway since June 2022. The contract 
documents include a range of performance and reporting requirements designed to offer assurance that the 

1 5 2 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 9 

  

facility is achieving its objectives. Reporting and monitoring activities are however still being embedded, and 
this will remain the case over the next few months. Some compliance data has already been provided by 
Parkwood to the Contract Monitoring Officer, and an initial monitoring meeting has taken place to lay the 
groundwork for future meetings. We note that, based on initial financial reports, Parkwood Leisure appear to be 
operating at a significant loss during the first few months of trading, due in large part to energy costs. This will 
require close monitoring, and the High Recommendation relates to this.  

Similarly, the maintenance elements of the contract are in their very early stages and will not come into full 
effect until after the snagging/defects period has ended. 

There is evidence of some maintenance related activities, such as statutory inspections and fire risk 
assessments. Copies of these have already been provided to the Contract Monitoring Officer and were seen 
during our site visit. 

Parkwood Leisure have also put together various plans such as a Sports Development Plan, Marketing Plan 
and annual Maintenance Plans, which have also been provided to the Council for monitoring and review. 

The current position then, reflected in our overall assurance level, is that the contract establishes a good range 
of metrics that can be used for monitoring and reporting. Practical arrangements for these monitoring activities 
are actively being established and introduced. However, it will take until late summer 2023, after the completion 
of the snagging/defects period, for the new monitoring arrangements, particularly those relating to 
maintenance, to become embedded and be considered business as usual. 

 
 
 
 
  

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 10 

Appendix 2 – Agenda items covered in District Council Audit Committees 

 

District Council Audit Committees - Coverage of subjects  

Introduction 

Devon District Council Audit Committees / Audit and Governance Committees undertake an important role as part of the Councils 
governance arrangements. Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) attends many of these committees and we observe that they provide useful 
review and challenge of areas of council operations.  

We have reviewed the agenda items and papers presented to them since April 2020 to prompt deliberation by committees on what other 
subjects might be considered by them.  

We have tried to accurately capture the items; and apologise if some have been missed off or entries are incorrect. It is also important to 
note that some of the differences in papers may reflect the different responsibilities and governance arrangements, as well as supporting 
committees such as Scrutiny etc. We have included the date when the item was considered for those who want further information.   

Summary of key points 

The reports are detailed in Appendix A and divided in two areas:  

 Core reports such as those presented on Council Governance, and by External and Internal Audit.  

 Non-routine reports that have been presented to Audit Committees; these are sometimes one-off items.  

Our broad conclusions are as follows:  

External and Internal Audit reports were being submitted as required for Committee review and sign off in support of governance 
responsibilities, such as the Annual Governance Statement.    
Corporate risk registers were being referred to committees for review and discussion. In addition, Mid Devon reviewed and approved the 
councils Risk Management Strategy every year. East Devon provided a clear assessment of its corporate and operational risks every six 
months; this provided them with a holistic picture of all risks, not just the strategic ones. 
We noted instances where committees were seeking additional assurance over high-risk areas and examples included:  

 The West Devon Committee asking to review debt management more frequently as the cost-of-living crisis is likely to make it more difficult 

for people to pay their debts.   

 The Exeter committee directing that the Climate Change risk register be discussed at every meeting.  

 North Devon obtaining periodic updates on Cyber Security.  

 Various councils reviewing the process / controls over the significant amounts of Covid-19 grants issued.  

 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 11 

 
We noted committees asking for updates from officers and questioning them to ascertain progress to rectify weaknesses identified in Internal 
Audit or other reports.   

We identified examples where committees were seeking to confirm core controls were operating effectively. For instance, Torridge discussed 
an annual report on all Procurement Waivers raised during the year. This is important as Waivers are instances where basic procurement 
rules have not been followed due to various reasons.   

It is important for Councils to have effective Counter Fraud arrangements as fraud now constitutes 40% of crime recorded in the UK. Most 
committees reviewed the Counter Fraud Strategy, Whistleblowing policy or other related documents.  

An annual Counter Fraud assessment against CIPFA controls is presented to the Torridge committee every year. DAP is subsequently looking 
to deliver similar fraud assessments to the other councils it supports this year as we consider this good practice.   

Some committees undertook exercises to review their effectiveness, either through an external exercise supported by DAP, or through a self-
assessment using questions provided to members (i.e., North Devon). 

We also identified instances where committees were seeking to learn lessons, for instance the South Hams Ivybridge Regeneration project, or 
the Mid Devon Disposal of Park Nursery. 

East Devon reviewed an annual paper on its Partnerships which promoted greater awareness of the partners the council was committed to 
support to further its objectives.  

We also identify other subject areas being discussed in other committees for consideration:  

• CIPFA Financial Management Code – compliance with the annual requirement.  
• Policy for the Prevention of Tax Evasion 
• HR Investigations and Whistleblowing 
• Information Governance Annual Report 
• Regulation of Investigatory Powers (RIPA) Act 2000 Report 
• LA owned company Annual Report and Financial Statements including Business Plans and in year updates. 
• Planning, Housing and Climate Emergency – Service of the Future Project update. 
• Project and Performance Indicator Target Setting Report. 
• Health, Safety and Wellbeing Annual Report 
• Report on ICT Policy. 
• Review of Council Officer Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 12 

 
 
 
 
Please contact me if you wish to discuss and elaborate on any points made in this paper. 

 
Paul Middlemass 
Paul.Middlemass@Devon.Gov.Uk  
Tel 07736 155 687  
Or  
DAP@Devon.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:Paul.Middlemass@Devon.Gov.Uk
mailto:DAP@Devon.gov.uk


  

Page | 13 

                  Appendix A 
Core reports received by Audit Committee since April 2020 

Agenda item South Hams West Devon North Devon Mid Devon Torridge East Devon Teignbridge Exeter 

 External Audit:   
Progress 
Reports 

 Update Reports 

 Annual Audit 
Letter 

 Audit Risk 
Assessments 

 Annual Plan 

 EA Fees 
 

Regular Regular Regular Regular Regular Regular Regular Regular 

External Audit 
Provision 
 

Irregular Irregular  Regular Regular Regular Mar 22 Oct 21 Regular 

Draft Statement of 
Accounts and Draft 
AGS 
 

Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual  

Audited Annual 
Statement of 
Accounts 
 

Annual Annual   Annual Annual Annual  

Internal Audit: 
Audit Plan 
Annual Report  
Progress Reports 
 

Regular Regular Regular Regular Regular 
 

Regular Regular Regular  

Internal Audit 
Recommendations 
 

  Every meeting Part of DAP 
report 

Periodic    

Follow Up of 
individual Internal 
Audit Reports 

As required 
(Limited 
Assurance 
reports i.e., 

As required 
(Limited 
Assurance 
reports) 

As required 
(Limited 
Assurance 
reports -i.e.  

 As required 
(Limited 
Assurance 
reports i.e., 

As required 
(Limited 
Assurance 
reports) 

  

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 14 

Agenda item South Hams West Devon North Devon Mid Devon Torridge East Devon Teignbridge Exeter 

Estates 
Property and 
Rents Sept 22) 

Business 
Continuity Mar 
22; Cyber 
Security Jun 
22)  

Estate 
Management) 

Internal Audit 
Charter & Strategy 
 

Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual 

Strategic Risk 
Update 
 

Six monthly Six monthly Regular Regular Regular Quarterly 
update  

Six monthly Quarterly 
update 

Approval Risk 
Management Policy 
 

   Annual  
(Mar 22) 

    

Cyber Security 
Update 
 

  Periodic      

Chairmans Report 
to Audit Committee 

  Six monthly 
(Nov 21, Jun 
22)  

Annual  
(Mar 22, Mar 
21) 

    

Effectiveness of 
Audit Committee - 
self assessment 
 

  Annual – 
Nov 22 

 Oct 21    

Fraud: review of 
annual assessment, 
or review of CF 
Strategy / Policy 

Confidential 
Reporting 
(Whistleblowing
) policy  
Mar 22 

Confidential 
Reporting 
(Whistleblowing) 
policy  
Mar 22 

Annual report 
on Fraud 
Investigations 
underway (Nov 
21); Anti 
Money 
Laundering 
Policy, 
Whistleblowing 
Policy, CF 
Strategy (Jun 
21) 

Annual - 
Counter Fraud 
Strategy and 
Policy; 
Whistleblowing 
Policy 
Fraud Risk 
Assessment 
(Feb 21) 

Annual Fraud 
Assessment 
Jan 21  
Jan 22 

Anti-Fraud, 
Bribery and 
Whistleblowin
g policies 
Jan 22 

 Whistleblowing 
policy     July 
22 

 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 15 

 
Other Reports discussed  

Agenda Item 
South 
Hams 

West 
Devon 

North Devon Mid Devon Torridge East 
Devon 

Teignbridge Exeter 

Capital Strategy, 
Treasury Management 
Annual and Mid-Year, 
Investment Strategy 

Oct 21, Mar 
22, Sep 22 

Nov 21, Dec 
21, Mar 22, 
Sep 22 
Revenue 
Reserves 
(Nov 22) 

      

Budget Book / Outturn 
for the Directorates 

Mar 22 
(annual 
review) 

Mar 22 
(annual 
review) 

   Annual 
review 

  

Sundry Debt and 
Housing Benefit 
Overpayments 
 

Quarterly Quarterly       

Lessons - Ivybridge 
Regeneration Project 
 

Oct 22 
 

       

Investment Properties 
Update and Monitoring 
Report 
 

Dec 21,  
Sep 22,  

Dec 21,  
Sep 22 

      

Shared Services 
Methodology (for 
apportionment of costs) 
 

Mar 22 Ape 21,  
Mar 22 

      

DCC Pensions 
Presentation 

Mar 22  
 

  Investment 
Strategy 
 

   

Audit Committee size 
 

   Sep 21     

Representation on DAP 
Board 
 

   Sep 21     

Performance and Risk 
report 

   Every meeting     

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 16 

Agenda Item 
South 
Hams 

West 
Devon 

North Devon Mid Devon Torridge East 
Devon 

Teignbridge Exeter 

 

Review & Revision of 
Financial Regulations 
 

   Jan 22     

Governance Review – 
Housing Programme 
 

Sep 22     
 

   

Compensation 
Payments under 
Delegated Powers 
 

  Annual  
Sep 22,  
Jun 21 

     

Ombudsman Review of 
Complaints Letter 
 

Oct 22 Nov 22    
 

 Annual Sept 21 

Approval to pay 
compensation above 
officer delegation 
 

  Nov 21      

Procurement Waivers, 
Contract Procedure 
Rules, Procurement 
thresholds 
 

    Annual  
July 21,  
July 22 

July 22 Dec 20,  
Oct 21 

 

Data Quality Policy and 
Standards 2022 
 

   Nov 22     

Code of Governance     Annual 
Jan 21,  
Jan 22 

Annual 
Nov 22 

 Annual – 
March 22  

Statement of Accounts 
– review of Accounting 
Principles 

     March 22   

Councillor Disclosure 
Barring Service Checks 
policy 
 

     Nov 21   

Partnership Review      Annual    

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



  

Page | 17 

Agenda Item 
South 
Hams 

West 
Devon 

North Devon Mid Devon Torridge East 
Devon 

Teignbridge Exeter 

Sep 21,  
Nov 22 

C-19 Grant Fraud 
Assurance 

   Mar 21 Lessons Grant 
Administration 
Mar 21 

Sep 21   

Homes England 
Compliance audit 
 

       July 22 

Review of Net Zero 
Climate Risk Register 
 

       Every meeting 

Redmond Review of 
Local Authority 
Financial Reporting 
 

   Sept 21     

Appointment of 
Independent persons 
for member code of 
conduct 
 

       Dec 21 

LGA Model “Member 
Code of Conduct” 
 

  Jun 21     March 21 

Approval of  
3 Rivers Development 
Ltd Business Plan 
 

   Nov 21,  
Nov 22 

    

Lessons from Disposal 
of Park Nursery 
 

   July 21     

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 31

A
genda Item

 8



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 8



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

Progress at January 2023
Value for Money
Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for relevant authorities other
than local NHS bodies auditors are required to issue our Auditor’s
Annual Report no later than 30 September or, where this is not
possible, issue an audit letter setting out the reasons for delay. This
letter was issued to the Chair of the Governance Committee in
September 2022.

Receipt of the letter of assurance from the Devon County Pension
Fund Auditor; and
Completion of our work on Property, Plant and Equipment [OLB]
valuations.

We are pleased to report that these areas of work were completed and
we issued our audit opinion on the 30th November 2022, ahead of the
National deadline. For context, only 12% of councils nationally achieved
this deadline.
We would again like to record our thanks to the finance team for their
support throughout the audit.
On issuing the opinion we have been unable to issue the audit
certificate, which signifies that the audit is closed. This is due to:

The National Audit Office has updated its guidance to auditors to
allow us to postpone completion of our work on arrangements to
secure value for money and focus our resources firstly on the
delivery of our opinions on the financial statements. This is intended
to help ensure as many as possible could be issued in line with
national timetables and legislation. The extended deadline for the
issue of the Auditor's Annual Report is now no more than three
months after the date of the opinion on the financial statements.

Our opinion was issued on 30th November 2022, which means that
the deadline for completion of our VFM work and issue of the
Auditors Annual Report is 28th February 2023.

Our VFM work has now commenced and our aim is to complete this
work substantially before this deadline and have bought in
additional specialist resource to help facilitate delivery.

In our Audit Findings report dated 15 September 2022 we set out
that we had completed sufficient work on the potential significant
weakness in arrangements reported in our 21 April 2022 Audit Plan to
conclude that there was no significant weakness in relation to the
Council’s Commercialisation Strategy.OurVFM being incomplete

The NAO have not yet issued their WGA guidance, and therefore
whilst the council are expected to be below the threshold for
additional work we have been unable to issue our WGA assurance
statement.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our work to date has not identified any significant risks of
weaknesses in arrangements. We will conclude our review ahead of
the NAO deadline.

Financial Statements Audit
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 were amended by SI 2021 No.
263. The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
[DLUHC] previously stated their intention to introduce secondary
legislation to extend the deadline for publishing audited local authority
accounts to 30 November 2022 for the 2021/22 accounts.
This was enacted by The Accounts and Audit [Amendment] Regulations
2022 [SI 2022 No. 708] that came into force on 22 July 2022. The
deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts for 2021/22 is
extended to 30 November 2022 and thereafter changed to 30
September for years up to 2027/28.
We set out in our November 2022 update paper that our audit was
substantially complete with just the following areas of work to complete:P

age 34

A
genda Item

 8



Commercial in confidence

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 8



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 8



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 8

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 8

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/10/press-release-psaa-announcement-of-procurement-outcome/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



Commercial in confidence

•

•

o

o

o

o

•

•P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition


P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



 

 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: 10th January 2023 

Topic: Polling Places Designations  

Report by: Head of Governance  

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report sets out the current proposal for polling places arrangements 

recommended as a result of the council’s responsibilities under the Electoral 

Registration and Administration Act 2013 and Schedule A1 of the 

Representation of the People Act 1983.   

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That Governance Committee recommend to Full Council that the proposed 

Polling Places for the District and Parish Elections in May 2023, as contained 

in Appendix A, be adopted.  

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1. To update the North Devon District polling places arrangements for the local 

government elections in May 2023. The full list is contained within Appendix 

A, with the main changes highlighted in blue, which includes:  

 Barnstaple Forches Ward: St Johns Community Centre 

 West Ward (Part) of Ilfracombe Parish: Holy Trinity Church 

 North Molton: Memorial Hall, North Molton 

 Fremington & Yelland Ward (Part 2): 31 Linscott Cresent, West 

Yelland 

3.2  St Johns Community Centre is just outside the polling district but no 

alternative polling place could be found. 

3.3  The previous polling place for Yelland was a garage of a private property, 

which is no longer available. Consideration was given to a temporary building 

but that would require physical ground works to an area of open space and 

with the hirer fees the costs were prohibitive. There are no suitable public 

buildings in the polling district but we have been able to find an alternative 

venue from a private resident wishing to use their property as a polling place.  

4. DEFINITIONS  

4.1. Polling district: the area created by the division of a constituency, ward or 

division into smaller parts, within which a polling place can be determined 

which is convenient to electors 

4.2. Polling place: the building or area in which polling stations will be selected by 

the Returning Officer 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 

 

4.3. Polling station: the room or building where the poll takes place, chosen by the 

Returning Officer for the election and publicised on the Notice or Poll or the 

Notice of Situation of Polling Stations and communicated via poll card after 

the Notice of Election.  

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1. There were no resource implications  

 

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1. Any changes seek to ensure that so far as is reasonably practicable, the 

polling places are accessible to all electors, including those who are disabled. 

When considering the designation of a polling place, regard must be given to 

the accessibility needs of a disabled person. 

6.2. A provision in the Elections Act 2022 is to make it easier for disabled people 

to vote from May 2023. Disabled voters can choose anyone who is over 18 to 

accompany them in the polling station to help them vote. There is also a 

requirement for Returning Officers to take all reasonable steps to provide 

equipment to support disabled voters to vote independently and in secret at 

the polling station.  

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

7.1. No environmental impact from the changes within the report. 

 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

8.1. Article of Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph: 5(e) 

8.2. Referred or delegated power? Delegated  

 

9. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:  

11. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 

Councillors and Officers 

 

Adam Tape, Head of Governance 

Page 44

Agenda Item 9



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Arrangements for Polling Districts & Polling Places. 
 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

AA  Arlington 
 

Arlington Village Hall, 
Kentisbury 

AB  Ashford 
 

Ashford Church Hall, St Peters Church, 
Ashford 

AC  Atherington 
 

Atherington The Pavilion, 
Atherington 

AD  
 
 

Barnstaple Central 
Town Part 1 

Barnstaple 
Central Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Norah Bellot Court, 
Vicarage Street, 
Barnstaple 

AE  Barnstaple Central 
Town Part 2 

Barnstaple 
Central Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Holy Trinity Church Hall, 
Barbican Road, 
Barnstaple 

AF  Barnstaple 
Forches Part 1 
 

Barnstaple 
Forches Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Forches Children’s Centre, 
Forches Avenue, 
Barnstaple 
 
 

AG  Barnstaple 
Forches Part 2 
 

Barnstaple 
Forches Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

St Johns Community Centre, 
Rose Lane, 
Barnstaple 

AH  Barnstaple 
Forches Part 3 
 

Barnstaple 
Forches Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Orchard Vale Community 
Primary School, Westacott Road, 
Barnstaple 

AI  Barnstaple Fort 
Hill Part 1 

Barnstaple Fort 
Hill Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Children’s Summer Club,  
2 Charles Dart Crescent, 
Barnstaple 

AJ  Barnstaple Fort 
Hill Part 2 

Barnstaple Fort 
Hill (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Our Lady’s Catholic School, 
Chanters Hill,  
Barnstaple 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



2 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

AK  Barnstaple Fort 
Hill Part 3 

Barnstaple Fort 
Hill Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Communal Lounge,  
Chichester Court, 
Valley Close,  
Barnstaple 

AL  
 
 

Barnstaple Fort 
Hill Part 4 

Barnstaple Fort 
Hill Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Barnstaple Bowling & Tennis Club, 
Ashleigh Road, 
Barnstaple 
 

AM  Barnstaple 
Longbridge 
 

Barnstaple 
Longbridge 
Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

St Pauls Church Hall 
Old Sticklepath Hill, 
Barnstaple 

AN  Barnstaple 
Newport Part 1 
 

Barnstaple 
Newport Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

St John the Baptist Church Hall. 
South Street, 
Barnstaple 

AO  Barnstaple 
Newport Part 2 

Barnstaple 
Newport Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Newport Methodist Church 
Gloster Road, 
Barnstaple 

AP  Barnstaple 
Newport Part 3 
 

Barnstaple 
Newport Ward 
(part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

St Johns Community Centre, 
Rose Lane, 
Barnstaple 

AQ  
 
 

Barnstaple Pilton 
& Yeo Valley  
Part 1 (Pilton) 

Barnstaple Pilton 
& Yeo Valley 
Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Pathfield School, 
Abbey Road,  
Barnstaple. 

AR  Barnstaple Pilton 
& Yeo Valley Part 
2 (Pilton) 

Barnstaple Pilton 
& Yeo Valley 
Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Pilton Church Hall,  
83 Pilton Street, 
Barnstaple 

AS  Barnstaple Pilton 
&Yeo Valley 
Part 3 (Yeo 
Valley) 

Barnstaple Pilton 
& Yeo Valley 
Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Barnstaple Social Club, 
St Georges Road,  
Barnstaple 
 

AT  Barnstaple Pilton 
& Yeo Valley (Part 
4) (Yeo Valley) 
 

Barnstaple Pilton 
& Yeo Valley 
Ward (part of 
Barnstaple 
Parish) 

Communal Lounge,  
Chichester Court, 
Valley Close,  
Barnstaple 

AU  Barnstaple  
Victoria 
 

Barnstaple 
Victoria Ward. 
(part of 

Holy Trinity Church Hall, 
Barbican Road, 
Barnstaple  

Page 46

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



3 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

Barnstaple 
Parish) 

AV  Berrynarbor 
 
 

Berrynarbor Manor Hall, 
Birdswell Lane, 
Berrynarbor. 

AW  Bishops Nympton 
(Mill on the Mole) 

Bishops 
Nympton 
(excluding that 
part in the 
Bishops 
Nympton 
(Newtown) 
Polling District 

Amory House, 
125 East Street, 
South Molton 

AX  Bishops Nympton 
(Newtown) 
 

Bishops 
Nympton 
(excluding that 
part in the 
Bishops 
Nympton (Mill on 
the Mole) Polling 
District 

Parish Hall,  
Spire Lake Close, 
Bishops Nympton 

     AY Bishops Tawton 
 

Bishops Tawton 
 

Bishops Tawton Hall, 
New Road, 
Bishops Tawton 

     AZ 
 

Bittadon Bittadon Methodist Schoolroom,  
Marwood 

BA  Bratton Fleming 
 

Bratton Fleming 
 

Village Hall,  
Station Road, 
Bratton Fleming 

BB  
 

Braunton East 
Part 1 

Braunton East 
Ward (part) of 
Braunton Parish 

Church Hall,  
Christchurch,  
East Street, 
Braunton 

BC  
 

Braunton East 
Part 2 

Braunton East 
Ward (part) of 
Braunton Parish 

Parish Hall,  
Chaloners Road, 
Braunton 

BD  
 

Braunton East 
Part 3 (Knowle) 

Braunton East 
Ward (part) of 
Braunton Parish 

Skittle Alley,  
Ebrington Arms,  
Winsham Road, 
Knowle, 
Braunton 

BE  Braunton West 
Part 1 

Braunton West 
(part) of 
Braunton Parish 

Kingsacre Primary School,  
Greenacre, 
Braunton 

BF  Braunton West 
Part 2 

Braunton West 
(part) of 
Braunton Parish 

The Yard @ Museum of British 
Surfing, 
Station Yard, 
Caen Street,  
Braunton 

BG  Brayford Brayford Village Hall,  

Page 47

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



4 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

 Brayford 

BH  Brendon & 
Countisbury 

Brendon & 
Countisbury 

The Village Hall,  
Brendon 

BI  Burrington 
 

Burrington The Parish Hall,  
Burrington 

BJ  Challacombe Challacombe The Function Room,  
Black Venus Inn,  
Challacombe 

BK  Chittlehamholt 
 

Chittlehamholt 
 

The Village Hall,  
Chittlehamholt 

BL  
 
 
 
 
 

Chittlehampton Chittlehampton 
(excluding that 
part in the 
Chittlehampton 
(Umberleigh) & 
(Cobbaton) 
Polling District. 

Chapel Schoolroom,  
The Square, 
Chittlehampton 
 

BM  Chittlehampton 
Umberleigh 
 

Chittlehampton 
(excluding that 
part in the 
(Chittlehampton) 
(& (Cobbaton) 
Polling District. 

The Village Hall,  
Umberleigh 

BN  Chittlehampton 
(Cobbaton) 
 

Chittlehampton 
(excluding that 
part in the 
(Chittlehampton) 
(& (Umberleigh) 
Polling District 

The Stables,  
Cragside,  
Cobbaton 

BO  Chulmleigh 
 

Chulmleigh 
 

The Town Hall,  
Fore Street, 
Chulmleigh 

BP  Combe Martin Combe Martin Village Hall, 
High Street, 
Combe Martin 

BQ  Combe Martin Combe Martin Village Hall,  
High Street, 
Combe Martin 

BR  East Anstey East Anstey The County Primary School, 
East Anstey 

BS  East & West 
Buckland (East 
Buckland) 

East Buckland The Parish Hall,  
West Buckland 

BT  East & West 
Buckland (West 
Buckland) 

West Buckland The Parish Hall,  
West Buckland 

BU  East Down 
 

East Down 
 

Village Hall,  
The Old School,  
East Down 

BV  East Worlington 
 

East Worlington 
 

Parish Hall,  
East Worlington 

Page 48

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



5 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

BW  
 

Filleigh Filleigh 
 

Village Hall,  
Filleigh 

BX  Fremington  
(Anchor Wood ) 

Anchor Wood 
Ward part of 
Fremington 
Parish 

Action for Children, 
Sticklepath Childrens Centre, 
Sticklepath School, 
Barnstaple 

BY  
 
 

Fremington 
Bickington Ward 
Part 1 

Bickington Ward 
part of 
Fremington 
Parish 

The Tomlin Hall,  
North Lane, 
Bickington 

BZ Fremington  
Bickington Ward 
(Brynsworthyl) 
Part 2 

Bickington Ward 
part of 
Fremington 
Parish 

Roundswell Community Centre, 
Gratton Way,  
Barnstaple 

CA  Fremington 
(Fremington & 
Yelland 
Fremington 
Part 1 

Fremington & 
Yelland Ward of 
Fremington 
Parish 

Parish Hall, 
Higher Road, 
Fremington 

CB  Fremington 
(Fremington & 
Yelland Ward) 
Part 2 

Fremington & 
Yelland Ward of 
Fremington 
Parish 

31 Linscott Cresent,  
West Yelland 

CC  Fremington 
Maple) 

Maple Ward part 
of Fremington 
Parish 

Roundswell Community Centre, 
Gratton Way,  
Barnstaple 

CD  Fremington 
(Roundswell & 
Woodville) 
 

Roundswell & 
Woodville Ward 
part of 
Fremington 
Parish 

Roundswell Community Centre, 
Gratton Way,  
Barnstaple 

CE  Georgeham 
 

Georgeham 
(excluding the 
part in the 
Georgeham 
(Croyde) Polling 
District) 

Village Hall, 
Georgeham 

CF  Georgeham 
(Croyde) 
 

Georgeham 
(excluding the 
part in 
(Georgeham) 
Polling District) 

Village Hall,  
1 Jones Hill, 
Croyde 

CG  George Nympton 
 

George Nympton 
 

Village Hall,  
George Nympton 

CH  Goodleigh 
 

Goodleigh 
(excluding the 
part in (Gunn 
Polling District) 

Village Hall,  
Goodleigh 
 
 

CI  Goodleigh 
(Gunn) 

Goodleigh 
(Excluding the 
part in 

Village Hall,  
Goodleigh 

Page 49

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



6 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

(Goodleigh 
Polling District) 

CJ  Heanton 
Punchardon 

Heanton 
Punchardon 
(excluding the 
part in the 
Heanton 
Punchardon 
(Chivenor) 
Polling District 

Heanton Church Hall, 
Wrafton Road,  
Wrafton 

CK  Heanton 
Punchardon 
(Chivenor) 

Heaton 
Punchardon 
(excluding the 
part in the 
Heanton 
Punchardon 
Polling District) 

Heanton Church Hall, 
Wrafton Road,  
Wrafton 

CL  Horwood Lovacott 
& Newton Tracey 
(Horwood) 
 
 

Horwood ward of 
Horwood, 
Lovacott & 
Newton Tracey 
Parish 

Village Hall,  
Lovacott 
 
 

CM  Horwood Lovacott 
& Newton Tracey 
(Lovacott) 
 

Lovacott ward of 
Horwood, 
Lovacott & 
Newton Tracey 
Parish 

Village Hall,  
Lovacott 

CN  Horwood Lovacott 
& Newton Tracey 
(Newton Tracey) 
 

Newton Tracey 
Ward of 
Horwood, 
Lovacott & 
Newton Tracey 
Parish 

Village Hall,  
Lovacott 

CO  Ilfracombe  
East Part 1 

East Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

Lantern Centre,  
High Street,  
Ilfracombe 

CP  Ilfracombe  
East Part 2 

East Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

St Peters Church,  
Highfield Road, 
Ilfracombe 

CQ  Ilfracombe 
East Part 3 

East Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

The Pavillion,  
Landmark Theatre, 
Ifracombe 
Pip and Jims Community Centre, 
St James Place, 
Ilfracombe 

CR  Ilfracombe 
East Part 4 

East Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

Rugby Club,  
Brimlands,  
Ilfracombe 

CS  
 

Ilfracombe (West) 
Part 1 

West Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

Holy Trinity Church,  
Church Road,  
Ilfracombe. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



7 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

CT  Ilfracombe (West) 
Part 2 

West Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

Holy Trinity Church,  
Church Road,  
Ilfracombe. 

CU  Ilfracombe (West) 
(Lee) 
Part 3 

West Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

Memorial Hall, 
Lee, 
Ilfracombe 

CV  Ilfracombe (West) 
(Slade) 
Part 4 

West Ward (part) 
of Ilfracombe 
Parish 

Vision Community Centre,  
Slade Valley Road,  
Ilfracombe 

CW  Instow 
 

Instow 
 

All Saints Chapel and Community 
Centre, 
Anstey Way,  
Instow 

CX  Kentisbury Kentisbury Village Hall, Kentisbury 

CY  Kings Nympton 
 

Kings Nympton 
 

Parish Hall,  
Kings Nympton 

CZ Knowstone 
 

Knowstone Village Hall,  
Knowstone 

DA  Landkey 
Mount Sandford 
Green  

Mount Sandford 
Green Ward part 
of Landkey 
Parish 

St John the Baptist Church Hall. 
South Street, 
Barnstaple 

DB  Landkey 
Newlands 
 

Newlands Ward 
part of Landkey 
Parish 

Village Hall,  
Blakes Hill Road, 
Landkey 

DC  Landkey 
Westacott  
 

Westacott Ward 
part of Landkey 
Parish 

Orchard Vale Community 
Primary School, Westacott Road, 
Barnstaple 

DD  Loxhore 
 

Loxhore Village Hall,  
Loxhore 

DE  Lynton 
 

Lynton 
 

Town Hall,  
Lee Road, 
Lynton 

DF  Lynmouth 
 

Lynmouth 
 

Lynmouth Church, 
Watersmeet Road,  
Lynmouth 

DG  Mariansleigh Mariansleigh Oxham Hall,  
Oxham Cross, 
Mariansleigh 

DH  Martinhoe 
 

Martinhoe 
 

Hannington Hall,  
Martinhoe 

DI  Marwood 
 

Marwood 
 

Methodist Schoolroom,  
Marwood 

DJ  Meshaw Meshaw Oxham Hall,  
Oxham Cross, 
Mariansleigh  

DK  Molland 
 

Molland 
 

Parish Hall,  
Molland 

DL  Mortehoe 
 

Mortehoe 
(excluding the 
part within 

Village Hall,  
Mortehoe 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



8 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

Mortehoe 
(Woolacombe 
Polling District) 

 
 
 

DM  Mortehoe 
(Woolacombe) 

Mortehoe 
(excluding the 
part within 
Mortehoe Polling 
District) 

Woolacombe Village Hall, 
3 Beach Road,  
Woolacombe 
 

DN  North Molton 
 

North Molton 
 

Victory Memorial Hall, 
North Molton 

DO  Parracombe 
 

Parracombe 
 

Village Hall,  
Parracombe 

DP  Pilton West 
 

Pilton West 
 

Pilton Church Hall,  
83 Pilton Street, 
Barnstaple 

DQ  Queens Nympton 
 

Queens 
Nympton 

Village Hall,  
George Nympton 

DR  Rackenford 
(Creacombe) 

Creacombe 
Ward of 
Rackenford 
Parish 

Rackenford Village Shop & Post 
Office, 
Rackenford 

DS  Rackenford Rackenford Rackenford Village Shop & Post 
Office, 
Rackenford 

DT  Romansleigh 
 

Romansleigh 
 

Village Hall,  
Romansleigh 

DU  Rose Ash Rose Ash Village Hall,  
Rose Ash 

DV  Satterleigh & 
Warkleigh 

Satterleigh & 
Warkleigh 

Village Hall,  
Chittlehamholt 

DW  Shirwell 
 

Shirwell 
 

Village Hall,  
Shirwell 

DX  South Molton South Molton Amory House, 
125 East Street, 
South Molton  

DY 
 

Stoke Rivers 
 

Stoke Rivers 
 

Tamlyn Room,  
Stoke Rivers 

      DZ Swimbridge 
 

Swimbridge 
 

Jubilee Hall,  
Barnstaple Hill, 
Swimbridge 

EA  Tawstock  
Northern Urban 

Northern Urban 
Ward of 
Tawstock Parish 

Methodist Chapel,  
Rhododendron Avenue,  
Barnstaple 

EB  Tawstock  
Rural 

Rural Ward of 
Tawstock Parish 

Village Hall,  
Tawstock 

EC  Tawstock  
Southern Urban  

Southern Urban 
Ward of 
Tawstock Parish 

Roundswell Community Centre, 
Gratton Way,  
Barnstaple 

ED  Trentishoe 
 

Trentishoe 
 

Village Hall,  
Parracombe 

EE  Twitchen Twitchen Parish Hall,  

Page 52

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



9 

Register 
 

Polling District Parishes & 
Other places 

within the 
Polling Districts 

Polling Station 

  Molland 

EF  West Anstey 
 

West Anstey 
 

Anstey Community Hall, 
Yeo Mill, 
West Anstey 

EG  West Down 
 

West Down 
 

Parish Hall,  
West Down 

EH  Westleigh 
 

Westleigh 
 

Village Hall, 
 Westleigh 

EI  Witheridge 
 

Witheridge 
 

Village Hall,  
North Street, 
Witheridge 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9
Appendix a



This page is intentionally left blank



Results of NDC Councillors’ “Review of Committee System” Survey

Please note that of 41 Councillors, there were 16 responses.

Do you feel engaged and involved in decision making?

Comments:

 Most decisions involve all Council members.

 I say yes, but I have mixed feelings about decision making, feeling at times as

if committees are effectively rubber-stamping decisions already made by

officers.

 Yes but only on the committees I am on.

 I’m on S&R which helps. Also my entire ward in in ENPA and I’m appointed to
the Park by NDC which is helpful - indeed the Constitution could usefully be
amended to give any Cllr whose ward is fully in ENPA first refusal on
appointment to it.

 Even though I don’t sit on all committees, I do get to feed in either by

attending or via our group representative. In the past the cabinet was only

made up of the ruling group, so virtually 50% of councillors were completely

excluded from the major decisions.

 Regular group meetings allow members to comment on agenda items to their

representatives on committees.

 I feel heard during meetings but I don’t bother to make myself listened to at

Full Council because it’s all political posturing. I do enjoy making my points as

part of the Independent Group through Cllr Prowse as he weekly asks for our

opinions of various items before he feeds back to Leader or SMT. I do know

that he gets frustrated at being left out of things with the Leader (on political

manoeuvres) and that should not be the case.

 I have to answer No as I feel there are issues given to us were the decision

has already been made and the deadline is the next day so Councillors are

given no options.

Yes
87%

No
13%

Answer

Yes No

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



 My answer would be partly mainly due to working full-time, I know I can take

part in committee meetings but it is the time I have available etc.

 Decisions are often time sensitive (for example if funding has been applied for

and may drop away) and committees may be forced to make decisions that

are not entirely satisfactory.

 As a member of the Strategy & Resources Committee, I feel that I am made

well aware of issues and my opinions are both respected and taken into

account when making final and important decisions.

 Part of a cross party committee

 Everybody gets an equal say on their opinions

 We receive and commission reports make recommendations, decide policy.
Decisions are not imposed upon us by small group of Councillors without
debate.

 (answered No): Because I work full time and meetings are generally held in

the day,

Page 56

Agenda Item 10



Have you experienced any advantages/disadvantage of the committee

system?

Comments:

 Far more democratic.

 The main advantage of the committee system is that it ensures that the

committees reflect the political makeup of the council. It allows for more open

debate although I am aware that there may be a party line on certain issues.

 Don’t really know what is happening in committees I am not on so difficult to

get an overall feel of things.

 The number and significance of the items on the S&R agenda appears to

have decreased significantly when compared to the Executive. I don’t

understand why this has happened. I also strongly feel that Portfolio Holders

should be S&R members otherwise they are disengaged from the decision

making process, as now happens with at least two portfolios.

 Better debate, which I believe means better decisions.

 It is more representative of the make-up of the Council, eliminating politics

being played at full Council.

 No as I haven’t any experience of the system before May 2019

 The committee system ensures all councillors feel part of the decision making

process. However the executive system was better for making urgent

decisions. Not having to wait for a committee to meet.

 Committees should be sensitised on upcoming/ important projects/ decisions

in advance of formal committee meeting so they can shape proposals more

effectively.

 I think it is a fair democratic way to run the council

 However, the process can be slow, but it is inclusive.

 Unable to attend meetings due to flexibility

Yes
50%

No
50%

Answer

Yes No

Page 57

Agenda Item 10



Were you a North Devon Councillor prior to May 2019?

Comments:
If yes, do you feel more or less involved in decision making with the committee

system than with the previous Executive model? More involved/Less

involved/Comments:

 Far more involved.

 More involved.

 Obviously the Committee system requires more members to be involved and

others having the opportunity to attend. But as with any meeting it is the

agenda items which will attract interest or not, from non-committee

members,(an example being, whether or not the Council would allow access

over Whiddon valley play area).

 I was only on the Council for a year before the last elections so it’s difficult to

answer with much of a comparison to the last model.

 I feel more involved using the committee structure but more work needs to be

done to link lead members into the decision making process.

 I was not a member of the previous Executive model so cannot really

compare. I do feel that S&R is keen to get cross party opinions and use them

to formulate reasoned and rational decision making.

 Less

Yes
50%

No
50%

Answer

Yes No

Page 58

Agenda Item 10



Do you consider that the committee system allows for quick decision making?

Comments:
If no, what improvements do you consider could be made to improve the speed of
decision making?

 That would depend upon whether speed of decision-making is the main

consideration. Coming to the right decision means making sure that the

evidence and advice given is sound - some issues require more scrutiny than

others. It may be worth re-visiting what types of decision are delegated to

which committee.

 I only clicked no, as this allowed me to comment. Yes it slows it down a bit,

but not so much that it means council does not make timely decisions. It is far

better that a committee has a wide representation of members, than a leader

making decisions, with little or no debate with the wider group of councillors. I

have felt completely out of the decision making process under the cabinet

system.

 Don’t understand how to measure speed of decision making.

 Urgent delegated powers to Chairs and lead members. Would need to amend

the constitution.

 Delegation of more mundane decisions to Chairman of Committees and

Officers, with a report back to committee or Full Council. Better training of

Councillors and Chairs so they understand their roles, and they do not

introduce irrelevant points or repeat points. An explanation of format of

reports, so key issues can be found.

Yes
69%

No
31%

Answer

Yes No

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



Do you consider that the committee system ensures quality decision making?

Comments:
If no, please provide details / comments:

 Not always. Again, it depends on sound evidence and advice, but also on the

level of scrutiny - and understanding - of members.

 The Policy Development Committee could be a very useful support to the

Council. At the moment it clearly isn’t.

 I don’t understand how to measure the word quality?

Yes
81%

No
19%

Answer

Yes No

Page 60

Agenda Item 10



Are there any improvements that could be made to the current committee

system?

Comments:
If yes, please provide details / comments:

 I think systems can always be improved. It may be worthwhile involving the

LGA more often in reviews. As a first term councillor having experienced the

Covid hiatus in the midst of everything I still feel I have a lot to learn about

how best to make things work.

 Portfolio Holders all on S&R.

 I think committee chairs giving short verbal updates to full council, would  give

better flavour of the work of that committee and engage wider members

better.

 The current Policy and Development could do with a more meaningful role, in

terms of the impact it should have on the Councils future direction of travel.

 Ward members should be involved at an early stage if there are decisions to

be made in their wards.

 Committees could be linked more formally in their decisions to avoid

duplication of work.

 Setting goals and priorities to help achieve our objectives.

 Putting members in the relevant committee

 More evening meetings

Yes
77%

No
23%

Answer

Yes No

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



We are currently preparing a member training and development programme for

Councillors following the Elections in 2023. Is there any training that you

would have found beneficial following the elections?

Comments:
If yes, please provide details / comments:

 I certainly have not made the most of my iPad and I am not an Apple user so

a bit of training on how best to use it beyond the initial training would have

been useful. Also access to a shared drive for reports rather than relying on

email attachments. I also think that whilst there is a place for online learning I

find face to face sessions more instructive over all, as well as them providing

the opportunity for further networking with other members and officers.

 The potential impact and implications of the government’s requirements for

photo ID to vote.

 The new public bin review/report form and mapping tool use should be

delivered to members. All councillors should be aware of the (new digital)

system that is in (will?) place so members can report a bin’s condition-

position-capacity etc. All members should be aware of the position of the

public litter bins in their Ward and understand Ownership (private public land)

and frequency of emptying etc.  This will then give members the opportunity to

decide if bins are in the right place or a different strategy needs to be

employed to tackle littering. (Councillor Pearson - Paul Burton.)

 A little more on the role of all committees and the responsibilities of each tied

in with our objections.

 Allowing Councillors to choose the method of delivery of information so they

do not have to spend time learning to use systems. Have more training

sessions in the evening. Remember most Councillors will have used a lot of

their holiday to campaign, and many employers are not happy with staff taking

time off during working hours no matter what the legislation says. Do not

assume that all Councillors have the same level of understanding or absorb

things at the same rate.  Make training sessions available on line so

councillors can review them at their own pace. Content of training good.

Yes
31%

No
69%

Answer

Yes No

Page 62

Agenda Item 10



 

 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: 10th January 2023 

Topic: Audit Recommendation Tracker 

Report by: Chief Executive 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This is the regular progress report to the Committee in relation to action taken 

to address internal and external audit recommendations. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1.  That the Committee note the actions that have been taken to address 

identified risk since the previous Governance Committee on 15th November 

2022. 

2.2. That the Committee raises any concerns arising from the list of outstanding 

actions on the Pentana system. 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1. To give assurance to the Committee that the recommendations are being 

actively managed via regular updates to the Pentana system and to give the 

Committee an opportunity to review any areas of concern. 

4. REPORT 

4.1. The Senior Management Team has reviewed the high and medium risk 

recommendations to assess progress and instigate any required actions. 

4.2. Since the last meeting the number of actions on the Pentana system has 

risen to 1,389.  

4.3. With regards to progress against the tracking of the Annual Governance 

Statement, an annual review of North Devon Council’s governance 

arrangements leads to the Annual Governance Statement, which forms part 

of the Statement of Accounts. 

4.4. In addition to any other issues, the review captures recommendations from 

external and internal audit and inspections, which sets out the action plan. 

This plan is tracked through Pentana; Appendix E of the report. 

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1.  Any resource implications will be addressed as part of actions updates on 

the Pentana system. 

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1. There are no equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



 

 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

7.1. None. 

 

8. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

8.1. None. 

9. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

9.1. Article of Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph: 5 

9.2. Referred or delegated power: Delegated. 

10. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:  

(a) The Pentana system to generate the appendix from the live actions on the 

system. 

 

(The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author 

of the report). 

12. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 

Councillors and Officers. 

 

 

 

Page 64

Agenda Item 11



Appendix A - Live Audit Reports, Status & Numbers 

 

No. Code 

 

Title Status Progress High 
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low Risk 

1 16 PL Planning 
Applications 
2015/16 

In Progress 82% 0 
  

3 0 

2 20 BC Business 
Continuity 
2018/19 

In Progress 95% 3 1 0 

3 20 C Creditors 
 

In Progress 80% 0 3 0 

4 20 MCS&BC Main Accounting 
System & 
Budgetary Control 
2020/21 

In Progress 50% 1 1 0 

5 21 CSM&R Cyber Security – 
Malware & 
Ramsonware 
April 2021 

In Progress 79% 8 9 3 

6 21 D Debtors August 
2021 

In Progress 90% 0 2 3 

7 21 H&S Health & Safety 
2021/22 

In Progress 91% 0 7 2 

8 21 P Payroll 2020/21 In Progress 78% 0 9 6 

9 21 SC-19 O Safe Covid-19 
Operations 
2020/21 

In Progress 93% 2 5 0 

10 22 C&C Contracts & 
Commissioning 
2021/22 

In Progress 0% 0 2 1 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix a



No. Code 

 

Title Status Progress High 
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low Risk 

11 22 CCG Climate Change 
Governance 

In Progress 0% 0 7 3 

12 22 CSC Customer Service 
Centre 2022/23 

In Progress 0% 0 1 1 

13 22 CTax 
&NNDR 

Council Tax and 
NNDR 2022/22 

In Progress 25% 0 1 0 

14 22 D Debtors June 
2022 

In Progress 28% 0 2 0 

15 22 E&D NDC Equality and 
Diversity 2022/23 

In Progress 10% 1 5 0 

16 22 EPCC  Emergency 
Planning Civil 
Contingencies 
2021/22 

In Progress 56% 0 4 0 

17 22 FUBCM Follow Up 
Business 
Continuity 
Management 
2021/22 

In Progress 91% 6 3 0 

18 22 GM Grounds 
Maintenance 

In Progress 85% 0 5 0 

19 22 L Licencing 
2021/22 

In Progress 25% 0 1 0 

20 22 MA Members 
Allowances 2022 

In Progress 66% 0 1 2 

21 22 P Planning Oct 
2021 

In Progress 0% 0 2 1 

22 22 PAY Payroll In Progress 33% 0 1 1 

23 22 PMO NDC Programme 
Management 
Office 

In Progress 48% 0 2 2 

24 22 S NDC Security In Progress 25% 0 4 1 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix a



No. Code 

 

Title Status Progress High 
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low Risk 

25 22 S Safeguarding Feb 
2022 

In Progress 48% 0 5 0 

26 22 TLSC Tarka Leisure 
Services Contract 

In Progress 11% 1 5 2 

27 22 W&R Waste & 
Recycling 
2022/23 

In Progress 57% 1 2 1 

 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix a



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

Appendix B - Audit recommendations completed since the last Governance Committee 
 
 

 

 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

19 GDPR 04 Data Cleanse Comino system project completed. Civica data 
retention has a service plan item agreed. on-going 
monitoring and awareness  

30-Apr-2019 9 Nov-2022 

20 C 02 Ensure Purchase Orders are 
raised before goods and services are 
ordered 

All Managers have been e-mailed to ensure that 
purchase orders are raised before goods and 
services are received. The accountants will discuss 
with budget holders during revenue monitoring. We 
will continue to monitor results   

31-Dec-2021 9 Nov-2022 

21 CSM&R 08 The Protective DNS mobile 
client is under evaluation. Enable safe 
browsing list services for computers that 
do not connect to the corporate network. 

Roaming DNS only affects users who are at home 
and are not connected to the VPN. 
 
We have not used Protective DNS but we have 
installed Sophos which manages this risk in a smarter 
way. We also have Sophos installed on mobile 
devices, including tablets, so the solution we have 
opted for covers all our devices and not just laptops. 

31-Mar-2022 8 Dec-2022 

21 H&S 05 Officers responsible for 
recording fire alarm tests, emergency 
lighting, firefighting equipment & signage 

Completed 31-Jan-2022 9 Nov-2022 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix b



2 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

have refresher training on the procedures 
& frequency necessary. 

21 P 01 Consider how it will be taking 
forward the actions in the Procurement 
Strategy, perhaps for inclusion in the 
Action Plan. 

The Procurement Working Group has been re-
established following the restructure of procurement 
and will pick up the action plan  

31-Dec-2021 9 Nov-2022 

22 D 01 All irrecoverable debts within 
department to be written off at the same 
time 

The central Finance Team undertake a review of the 
debtor account when writing off debts to ensure that 
all appropriate debts are included.  

30-Nov-2022 28 Nov-2022 

22 D 02 Writing off or cancelling invoices 
for dissolved companies or outstanding 
Trade Waste debt 

Trade Waste and central Finance Teams advised to 
use Companies House as part of their debt recovery 
procedures.   

31-Dec-2022 28 Nov 2022 

22 HB 01 CORE Full Access to IBS 
system 

Number of users with core access has been 
reviewed. We are still awaiting advice from Civica as 
to wether there is an alternative to how we are 
working at the moment. We will continue to review 
and monitor this recommendation.  

30-Nov-2022 8 Dec-2022 

22 MA 02 Review requirement to publish 
Members' private addresses 

E-mail sent to all members by the Monitoring Officer 
on 3/11/22 

30-Sep-2022 8 Nov-2022 

22 PMO 04 Log to be maintained recording 
support to programmes/projects 

This log has been set up in: T:\Programme & Project 
Methodology\Finalised Documentation named 
Feedback and has already been populated with 3 
positive elements of feedback. 

31-Dec-2022 7 Dec2022 

22 PMO 06 Management and capture of 
opportunities systematically 

The RICALL Log has now been amended to allow 
those risks to be noted as threat or opportunity risks. 

01-Dec-2022 7-Dec-2022 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix b



3 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

22 S 04 Review to ensure that correct level 
of vetting takes place for appropriate roles 
at NDC 

NDC are now registered with DCC to carry out our 
DBS checks for new and existing staff where 
appropriate. Managers are being contacted to help to 
identify those reporting to them who may require a 
DBS to be actioned 

30-Sep-2022 4 Nov-2022 

22 S 05 Reliance Protect security devices 
not being regularly tested 

No longer had an issue as contract with Reliance 
Protect now terminated. New contract with Orbis has 
just been agreed and will roll out new devices to staff 
in the coming weeks. Moving forwards all staff will 
undergo training on use of the devices and H&S 
Advisor to remind all users and their managers that 
the devices must be used in line with their risk 
assessments, and if not require dot be used, that they 
still be checked daily to ensure they are working 
correctly should they be required.  

16-Aug-2022 10 Nov 2022 

22 S 06 Section 11 Assurance Statement 
to be made as soon as possible 

Section 11 has been completed and submitted 30-Jun-2022 6 Dec 2022 

22 W&R 04 3 weekly trial over-run S&R committee agreed to bring the trial to an end, at 
the end of October. 
 
A mailshot, followed by a leaflet was issued to trial 
area customers during November. 
 
The final actual 3 weekly collection took place w/c 
21/11/22. 

30-Nov-2022 6 Dec 2022 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix b



4 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

22 W&R 06 Update web pages with 
outcomes and proposals 

Should members decide to move forward with 3 
weekly collections in the future, then the website will 
be refreshed to reflect any changes. 

30-Nov-2022 7 Dec-2022 

21 H&S 01 Implement a formal process to 
ensure all new entrants complete H&S 
training; & existing staff H&S compliance 
refresher every 2 years 

Presentation with voice over recorded and ready to 
roll out to new starters as required. 
 

31 Jul 2022 14 Dec- 2022 

21 H&S 06 Any managers responsible for 
undertaking departmental risk 
assessments should receive a refresher on 
the process, & this should be recorded with 
HR 

Risk assessment refresher training emailed to all 
managers and quiz to be undertaken to show 
completion of training. PAC monitoring the responses 
and will chase up those not completing the quiz. 
 

30 Jun 2022 14 Dec 2022 

  

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix b



5 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

21 H&S 10 Some Fire Safety Plans could 
od with updates of who has been trained 
and when 

PAC has been liaising with Chay as these are his 
docs and he is going to have a think about how best 
to do this as the docs in some cases refer to “the 
senior person in charge” or in some cases “trained 
person” but he says this (trained person) is in 
reference to a disabled person who might need 
assistance and the trained person would be 
documented in their Personal Emergency Evacuation 
Plan (PEEP). We both feel this is a minor issue, given 
that the auditor thought the rest of the plans were 
okay. 

30 Apr 2022 14 Dec 2022 

21 BCFU 09 Consider the Impact of Covid-
19 on Operations 

A further debrief of the IMT and new members of 
SMT was carried out in November 2021. All members 
of SMT were asked to complete a feedback form 
drawing on their/Teams experiences since the last 
debrief of COVID19 as well as other concurrent 
events (Flooding, Forth Bridge, Ruda Caravan Site) in 
order to identify things that went well and areas for 
improvement. The feedback underwent thematic 
analysis and four main themes were identified 
“organisational agility”, “Communication”, “Safety 
Measures” and “Staff Resilience and Homeworking”. 

Recommendations from the previous debrief were 
closed down where appropriate and a system has 
been put in place to ensure future actions are tracked 
to completion. 

31 Dec 2021 15 Dec 2022 

 
  

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix b



6 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

22 GM 05 Current quantitative KPIs A mix of qualitative and quantitative objectives have 
now been set through the EE Programme. These will 
be developed and reported on through the 
Programme's activity reports.  

30 Sep 2022 19 Dec 2022 

21 CCG 04 Implement a corporate 
environmental management system with 
associated KPI's 

It is not practical or possible to implement a new 
bespoke Environmental Management system. 
Instead, we have set KPI's that will be reported on 
through the EE Programme activity reports 

30 Nov 2022 19 Dec 2022 

22 W&R 03 Maintaining older fleet vehicles Transport Manager to continue to monitor contract 
performance closely with regular contract meetings. 
Assessment has been made on early replacement of 
x3 Romaquips, finance has been agreed and order 
will be placed by end Dec 2022. 

31 Oct 2022 20 Dec 2022 

 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix b



Appendix C - Outstanding Audit Recommendations where Head of Service have requested a revision to the due date 

 
 

Code Description Progress  Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

21 CSM&R 
16 
Regularly 
exercise 
system and 
data restore 
& recovery 
 
HIGH 
PRIORITY 

Recommendation: Regularly 
exercise system and data restore & 
recovery:  
* A cycle of restore rests for critical 
business applications  
* The recovery of files from 
unstructured files storage  
* Restore and recover objects in 
document management storage such 
as SharePoint  
Observation: ICT do not regularly 
exercise system and data restore and 
recovery. Ad-hoc restore of servers 
from backup and recovery of files 
does take place.  
Implications: Restore and recovery 
of critical business in response to an 
incident may be inefficient of not 
possible.   

20% 

08-Dec-2022 We are engaging 
with a trusted supplier and are 
in the process of agreeing a 
specification with them, The 
solution requires additional 
server and a SAN (Storage 
Area Network). Supply chain is 
an issue. We have ordered 
similar kit for BEC for our live 
production environment. We 
are hoping that work will be 
completed by the end of 
February. This will give us the 
intelligence we need to 
replicate at our second site 
located at Lynton House.  
 
Extension requested - 30th 
June 2023 

31-Mar-2022 
30-Nov-
2022 

  

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



Code Description Progress  Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

22 S 03 
Refresher 
training for 
members, 
SMT and 
Lead 
Officers 
 
MEDIUM 
PRIORITY 

Recommendation: Undertake 
refresher training for members, senior 
management and lead officers. 
Observation and Implications: 
Plans in place to deliver PREVENT 
training and links provided show 
action being taken. However, it is now 
three years since policy and training 
delivered on remainder (besides 
County Lines delivery in July) so 
refreshers would be advisable for 
Members, Senior Management and 
Lead Officers. 

90% 

06-Dec-2022 Remaining 
Safeguarding training for staff 
will take place in January / 
February 2023.  
 
Dates are set but the actual 
training will not be until 2023. 
 
Request extension until 28th 
February 2023. 

31-Dec-2023 30-Nov-2022 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



Code Description Progress  Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

22 EPCC 03  
Provide to 
all members 
an 
awareness 
session 
based on 
LGA 
Guidance 
'Role of 
Councillors 
in Civil 
Emergencie
s' plus 
capture the 
role of 
member 
within NDCs 
Response & 
Recovery 
Plan 
 
 
MEDIUM 
PRIORITY 
 
 
 
 

Observations & 
Implications: There is no current 
process or detail on the role of 
members in supporting the Council 
in the event of any incident in the 
Response and Recovery phase. 
We understand that members have 
in the past provided good support 
to some emergency incidents. 

50% 

A training event for 
councillors was planned for 
the 8th October 2022. Due to 
the unfortunate passing of 
The Queen the training was 
cancelled after the first 
presentation was delivered 
by Alex Miles (Emergency 
planning Officer). Since this 
date the representative for 
the Environment Agency, 
who was due to present on 
at risk areas in North Devon 
has been seconded to assist 
with drought planning. Other 
training sessions are being 
supported by the emergency 
planning officer and a 
Community engagement 
events has been planned by 
Devon Communities 
Together for the 28th March 
and these are promoted to 
Town and Parish Councils, 
councillors are welcome to 
attend to learn more about 
community resilience, 
funding available to their 
communities and to partake 

30 Dec 2022 
01 Dec 
2022 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



in flood warden training. The 
Environment Agency and 
Devon Communities 
Together are happy to 
continue to support this 
training in future, in order to 
balance other agencies 
priorities and workloads we 
will look to deliver this 
training after the elections 
have been held in May so 
that training doesn’t have to 
be repeated in short 
succession.   

Extension requested 
–  31st December 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



Code Description Progress  Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

22 P 02 
Learning a 
lesson from 

obtaining 
consultee 
responses 
should be 
replicated 

for the 
whole 

consultee 
list 

 
MEDIUM 

PRIORITY 

Recommendation: The recent work 
undertaken by the Planning Service 
Manager in obtaining improved timely 
responses from one of the major 
consultees upon the Consultee List 
should be replicated with other 
consultees both internal and external 
to it, to ensure all necessary 
consultee responses are received in 
a timely manner in accordance with 
the consultation. 

Observations and 
Implications: Reviewing the 
Consultations' tab on the Planning 
webpage with regard individual 
planning applications and looking at 
eth Consultee List shows significant 
numbers of consultees with a 'reply 
received' date after the 'reply due' or 
in several cases shown as not 
providing and response whatsoever. 
It is understood work has recently 
been undertaken by the Planning 
Service Manager with DCC Highways 
which has resulted in improved timely 
responses from this consultee. 

 

0% 

The new Service Manager 
(Development Management) 
will be contacting all 
consultees to remind them of 
the importance of receiving 
responses in a timely manner. 

Request revised due date: 
28th Feb 2023 

 

30th Sept 2022 30th Sept 2022 

 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



Code Description Progress  Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

22 CTAX & 
NNDR 01  

Identify Fraud 
- which would 
lead to loss of 

revenue 
 

MEDIUM 
PRIORITY 

Recommendation The council needs 
to review NFI data matches received. 
The NFI system now requires 
comments / findings to be entered 
against matches provided within 
individual reports enabling the 
Cabinet Office to view progress 
made. 

Observation and 
Implications Revenues staff have 
not had the resources nor time to 
review and investigate the two 
relevant NFI reports provided back to 
the authority following the last NFI 
data matching exercise nearly two 
years ago. Regarding the Council Tax 
dataset submitted for the NFI 
exercise Synectics Solutions 
following their data matching provide 
for each authority as output two 
reports - one re 'Single Person 
Discount (SPD)' and the other 'Rising 
18s' data matches. If persons have 
wrongly been claiming Single Person 
Discount or a ‘Rising 18’ is resident in 
a single person discount claiming 
household, then a potential change is 
required increasing the amount due 
upon the council tax bill. Whilst 

0% 

Training has been given and 
work will be done as resource 
allows between HB/CTR 
processing. NFI system 
problems have slowed 
progress. NDC, in partnership 
with DCC & DAP, will be 
undertaking a full review of 
single occupier discounts; this 
is in the CF Service Plan and 
the request for extension of 
time aligns with this. 

Request extension of time: 
31st August 2023 

 

30 Nov 2022 30 Nov 2022 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



Revenues staff have not reviewed the 
NFI reports they do undertake their 
own monitoring of Rising 18s through 
obtaining the Electoral Roll from the 
Elections Team. The NFI Single 
Person Discount report received is 
not considered particularly robust 
containing a lot of irrelevant and 
worthless data matches. It is 
understood that a Devon County 
Council funded exercise upon SPD is 
potentially due to commence soon to 
which North Devon have agreed to 
participate in whereby an external 
company will undertake the 
necessary follow up of the data 
matches their own data matching 
exercise identifies. DAP was informed 
that North Devon have signed up to 
undertake an exercise via an external 
third party upon companies claiming 
Small Business Rate Relief with a 
couple of other local authorities. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



Code Description Progress  Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

22 GM 08 
Benefits of 
bringing the 
service in-
house 
 
MEDIUM 
PRIORITY 

Recommendation: Perform a 
cost/benefits analysis since bringing 
the service in-house. 

Observation and 
Implications: Members and the 
public are not aware of the benefits of 
bringing the service in-house, 
potentially leading to more complaints 
from the public than might otherwise 
be received. Presentation of the facts 
to Members alongside the plan would 
help increase theirs and public 
engagement. 

 

0% 

 A report will be taken to S & R 
in March 2023. Future updates 
will be presented through the 
EE Programme.     
 
Request extension of time: 
31st March 2023 

31 Oct 2022 31 Oct 2022 

22 S 01 The 
absence of 
security 
training for 
staff 
 
MEDIUM 
PRIORITY  

Recommendation: A simple security 
awareness module should be created 
and circulated to all staff periodically 
and included with induction training. 

Observation and Implications: The 
absence of security awareness 
training for staff increases 
vulnerability and therefore the 
likelihood of an attack on a property 
and/or staff being successful. 

 

0% 

There are no specific external 
training providers which have 
been identified therefore in-
house training to be recorded 
for staff circulation. 

Request extension of time: 
28th February 2023 

 

30 Nov 2022 30 Nov 2022 

 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix c



Appendix D – Overdue actions  
 

Code Description Progress  Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

 

NIL 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix d



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E – Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 Recently Completed Actions, Request for Revised Due Date and Overdue 

actions 

Code Description Status Progress Latest Note Original 
Due Date 

Due 
Date 

21 AGS 
01 

Training on the 
Members' Code 
will need to be 
provided again by 
the new Head of 
Governance 

Complete 100% 16-Feb-2022 Training was provided to 
Members on 20th January 2022 by the 
Monitoring Officer. The session was also 
recorded 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 Mar 
2022 

21 AGS 
02 

The Register of 
Interest needs 
updating as it 
was last updated 
in February 2019. 

Complete 100% 16-May-2022 The registers of interests on 
the website for both District Councillors and 
Parish Councillors are up-to-date with the 
registers of interests that we have received 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 Mar 
2022 

21 AGS 
03 

Undertake a 
review of the 
Complaints 
Procedure to 
confirm that it is 
operating 
effectively 

Complete 100% 14-Sep-2022 This action is now complete. 
The feedback process was mapped which 
resulted in a new Firmstep form to report 
complaints, compliments and comments. A 
recent Audit report of W&R gave assurance 
of the complaint procedure. The team will 
continually review the process ongoing 

31-Mar-
2022 

31-Dec-
2022 

  

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix e



Code Description Status Progress Latest Note Original 
Due Date 

Due 
Date 

21 AGS 
04 

Undertake more 
periodic staff 
surveys to get a 
current view on 
how staff are 
feeling, and 
identify if staff 
have any issues, 
concerns or 
trends in areas 
such as Equality 
& Diversity, 
Bullying, 
Harassment, 
level of stress 

Complete 100% 01-Jun-2022 We have just undertaken a 
comprehensive staff welling survey, of 
which the results are being analysed. These 
surveys will continue on a regular basis 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 Mar 
2022 

21 AGS 
05 

Produce the 
Annual Equality 
Report which is a 
legal requirement 

In progress 75% 14-Dec-2021 The community data has been 
uploaded to the NDC website. Further data 
on the Council workforce to follow. 
 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 Dec 
2022 

21 AGS 
06 

The Constitution 
will need to be 
updated to reflect 
the recent 
governance 
changes 

Complete 100%  
11-Nov-2021 Closure Note: The Monitoring 
Officer confirms that the Constitution for the 
purposes of this audit recommendations has 

been updated. 

30 Nov 
2021 

30 Nov 
2021 

  

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix e



Code Description Status Progress Latest Note Original 
Due Date 

Due 
Date 

21 AGS 
07 

The Council 
should consider 
how to report 
more clearly how 
our budget is 
spent and the 
impact it is having 

In progress 25% Delivery has been delayed by the 
restructure of the Finance Team. Currently 
looked at best practice at other Councils.  

31 Mar 
2022 

30 Jun 
2023 

21 AGS 
08 

Remove the 
Browse Forward 
Plans with key 
decision 
notifications off 
the website as it 
contains no 
current 
information 

Complete 100%  
07-Dec-2021 Our software supplier has now 
removed this. 

30 Nov 
2021 

30 Nov 
2021 

21 AGS 
09 

Update the 
Freedom of 
Information 
statistics as there 
is only coverage 
up to September 
2020 

Complete 100% 11-Nov-2021 The Monitoring Officer 
confirms that the FOI Stats are now up to 
date:  
 
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/data-
protection-and-freedom-of-
information/freedom-of-information-
statistics/ 
 
 

31 Dec 
2021 

31 Dec 
2021 

  

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix e

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/data-protection-and-freedom-of-information/freedom-of-information-statistics/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/data-protection-and-freedom-of-information/freedom-of-information-statistics/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/data-protection-and-freedom-of-information/freedom-of-information-statistics/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/council/data-protection-and-freedom-of-information/freedom-of-information-statistics/


Code Description Status Progress Latest Note Original 
Due Date 

Due 
Date 

21 AGS 
10 

Discuss the LGA 
CPCs Follow Up 
review 
recommendations 
with Council 
officers when it is 
completed 

Complete 100% 16-Feb-2022 CPCs original and final report 
was presented to Full Council in January 
2022 and members noted the two reports 
and officers to publish them accordingly. 
The reports were also circulated to all staff. 

31 Dec 
2021 

31 Dec 
2021 

21 AGS 
11 

Consider whether 
there is a need 
for a 
communication & 
engagement 
strategy to 
ensure the 
Council is 
reaching out to 
the community 
and is accessible 
in its 
communications 

In progress 60% Currently working on a draft community 
engagement vision for SMT's consideration 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 Jul 
2023 

21 AGS 
12 

Review & update 
the Corporate 
Plan and council 
priorities 

Complete 100% 16-Feb-2022 Two Member workshops have 
been held to review the Corporate Plan and 
this also included engagement on the 
Programmes which look to deliver on the 
Council priorities. 

31 Dec 
2021 

31 Dec 
2021 

  

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix e



Code Description Status Progress Latest Note Original 
Due Date 

Due 
Date 

21 AGS 
13 

Progress the 
recommendations 
within the Devon 
Districts 
Procurement 
Strategy & 
update the 
Procurement 
Sustainability 
Strategy 

In progress 40% Procurement has been restructured within 
the Legal Team and a new Procurement 
Officer has been appointed. The 
Procurement Working Group has been re-
established following these changes and will 
now progress this recommendation. 

31 Mar 
2022 

30 Sep 
2023 

21 AGS 
14 

Consider how to 
provide more 
summary 
information for 
the public on 
Council 
Performance, 
Performance and 
Financial 
Management & 
PIs as there is no 
easy access to 
information on 
delivery against 
priorities, plans or 
indicators 

In progress 25% 26-May-2022 Heads of Service are currently 
reviewing their performance indicators. The 
publishing of summary information is within 
phase 2 of the financial security programme 
and will be produced in line with the 22/23 
Statement of Accounts. 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 May 
2023 

  

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix e



Code Description Status Progress Latest Note Original 
Due Date 

Due 
Date 

21 AGS 
15 

Re-review the 
core performance 
indicators to 
confirm that they 
can be used to 
monitor and 
report 
performance in all 
important sectors 

In progress 55% Our existing suite of KPIs and local 
indicators have been reviewed, resulting in 
a significant reduction in those lagging 
performance indicators and officer time to 
collate and update the system. We have 
reached out to the LGA and are taking part 
this month in round table discussion with 5 
other local authorities to share good 
practice. In addition to this our Internal Audit 
Team, Devon Audit Partnership, have also 
arranged a performance management 
session with some of their local customers. 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 Mar 
2023 

21 AGS16 Undertake a 
compliance 
assessment 
against the new 
Financial 
Management 
Code as required 
by CIFPA 

Complete 100% The assessment has now been completed 
and has been sent to internal and external 
auditors for comment, prior to being 
reported to the Governance Committee. 

31 Mar 
2022 

31 Jan 
2023 

 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix e



Governance Committee Work Programme 2022/23 

This work programme provides structure for the Audit Committee to ensure it receives reports and updates at the 

appropriate meetings throughout the year. It is reviewed and updated at each committee meeting.  

 

North Devon Council Reports and updates: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

14 Jun 2022 26 Sep 2022 15 Nov 2022 10 Jan 2023 14 Mar 2023 

Review of the Committee’s 
Terms of Reference (Legal) 
 

    Report Due 

Annual Review of the 
Committee’s effectiveness (JT) 
 

Report Due Report carried 
over from June 
2022 (for 

2021/22) 

  Report Due 
(for 2022/23) 

Half Yearly Report from the 
Chair of the Governance 
Committee (KJ). 
 

Report 
carried over 
from March 
2022 

Report Due 
Sept each year 

  Report Due 
March each 
year 

Annual Governance Statement 
 
 

 Report Due    

Statement of Accounts 
 
 

Report Due Report carried 
over from June 
2022 

   

Letter of Representation (JT) 
 
 

 Report Due    

Compensation payments made 
under delegated powers. (SH) 
 

Report Due Report carried 
over from June 
2022 

   

Procedure for the Conduct of 
Investigations 

 Report Due   Report Due 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 12



Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

14 Jun 2022 26 Sep 2022 15 Nov 2022 10 Jan 2023 14 Mar 2023 

Update Report for the 
Investigations Update 
 

 Report Due   Report Due 

Major changes to Accounting 
Policies Management 
procedures to be reported by 
the Head of Resources 

    Report Due 

 
Update on Governance 
Arrangements  

   Report Due  

Update on Business Continuity 
(AM) 
 

    Report Due 
(moved from 
Jan 2023) 

Update on Cyber Security 
(AT) 
 

 Report due 
(as requested at 
June Committee) 

   

Audit Recommendation Tracker Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due 
 
 

Work Programme 
 
 

Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due 

Review of the Committee 
System 

   Report Due (as 

requested at Nov 
Committee) 

 

Extensions to Planning 
Application Responses (JM to 
report 
 

   Report Due (as 

requested at Sept 
Committee) 

 

Part B: 
Corporate Risk Register (AT) 
(quarterly) 
 

Report Due 
 

Report Due  Report Due Report Due 

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 12



Internal Audit Agenda Items: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

14 Jun 2022 26 Sep 2022 15 Nov 2022 10 Jan 2023 14 Mar 2023 

Internal Audit Annual report 
 

Report Due     

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 
 

    Report Due 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

    March each 
year 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due 

 

External Audit Items: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

14 Jun 2022 26 Sep 2022 15 Nov 2022 10 Jan 2023 14 Mar 2023 

External Audit - Fee Letter 
 

     

External Audit - Findings Report 
 

 Report Due    

External Audit - Annual Audit 
Report (*previously Letter) 
 

    Report carried 
over from Nov 
2022 

External Audit - Plan 
 

Report Due    Report Due 

External Audit - Progress Report 
and Sector Update 

Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due 

 

 

Updated 13/12/22 

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15th November 2022
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Introduction
	Opinion Statement
	Executive Summary of Audit Results
	Value Added
	Appendix 1 – Summary of audit reports and findings for 2022-23
	Appendix 2 – Agenda items covered in District Council Audit Committees

	8 External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
	9 Polling Places Designations
	North Devon Council
	Topic: Polling Places Designations
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. RECOMMENDATIONS
	3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
	4. DEFINITIONS
	5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
	7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT
	8. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT
	9. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
	10. BACKGROUND PAPERS
	11. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE

	Polling Station District Order Appendix
	Arrangements for Polling Districts & Polling Places.


	10 Update on Governance Arrangements following Review of the Committee System
	Results of NDC Councillors’ “Review of Committee System” Survey
	Do you feel engaged and involved in decision making?
	Comments:

	Have you experienced any advantages/disadvantage of the committee system?
	Comments:
	Comments:
	Comments:
	If no, what improvements do you consider could be made to improve the speed of decision making?

	Do you consider that the committee system ensures quality decision making?
	Comments:

	Are there any improvements that could be made to the current committee system?
	Comments:

	We are currently preparing a member training and development programme for Councillors following the Elections in 2023.  Is there any training that you would have found beneficial following the elections?
	Comments:



	11 Audit Recommendation Tracker
	North Devon Council
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. RECOMMENDATIONS
	3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
	4. REPORT
	5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
	7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT
	7.1. None.
	8. CORPORATE PRIORITIES
	9. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT
	10. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
	11. BACKGROUND PAPERS
	12. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE

	Appendix A
	Appendix A - Live Audit Reports, Status & Numbers

	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E

	12 Work Programme 2022-23
	14 Corporate Risk Register

